
 Tillamook County Transportation District 
Board of Directors 

Regular Monthly Meeting 

 Wednesday, February 19, 2025, at  6:00PM 
Transportation Building 

3600 Third Street, Tillamook, Oregon 



Next regularly scheduled meeting to be held March 19, 2025 

Tillamook County Transportation District 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS – REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING 

Agenda: Wednesday, February 19, 2025 @ 6:00pm 

REGULAR MEETING 
1. Call to Order
2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call
4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda
5. Public & Guest Comments
6. Executive Session: None

STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT 

7. Financial and Grant Reports (December) (Pgs.1-24)
8. Service Performance Reports (December) (Pgs.25-33)
9. Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance (February) (Pgs.34-37)
10. NW Rides Brokerage
11. General Managers Report (Pgs.38-39)

a. Administration/Coordination
b. Planning/Development
c. Grant Funding
d. Facility/Property Management
e. Operations/Vehicle Maintenance

12. Miscellaneous

CONSENT 
13. Motion to Approve the Minutes of January 15, 2025, Regular Board Meeting (Pgs.40-45)
14. Motion to Approve December 2024 Financial Statements 
15. Ordinance No. 2: Re-establishing and Amending Ordinance No. 2; Establishing TCTD Fare 

Zones, Categories, and Rates; and Establishing an Effective Date (Pgs.46-50)
16. Motion to Approve TCTD FY 2025-26 Budget Calendar (Pg.51)
17. Motion to Appoint GM Brian Vitulli as FY 2025-26 Budget Officer
18. Motion to Amend Policy 32: Reasonable Modification (Pgs.52-56)
19. Motion to Authorize General Manager to Execute Furniture Quote with National Business 

Furniture (Pgs.57-62)

ACTION ITEMS 
20. Resolution 25-03 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Amendment Number 4 to 

ODOT Section 5339 Grant Agreement Number 34225 (Pgs.63-70)
21. Resolution 25-04 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Amendment Number 3 to 

ODOT Section 5311 Grant Agreement Number 34242 (Pgs.71-77)
22. Resolution 25-05 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Amendment Number 1 to 

ODOT Section 5311 Grant Agreement Number 35606 (Pgs.78-87)

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
23. Appointment to Board of Directors - Position 1 (Expiring June 30, 2025) (Pgs.88-89)
24. Staff Comments
25. Board of Directors Comments
26. Adjournment

UPCOMING EVENTS 

To attend by phone, please dial: +1 (253) 215-8782   Meeting ID: 814 4875 2742 

To attend virtually, please use this link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81448752742 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/


1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



TCTD Operations 
Statistics & 
Performance
December 2024

25



YTD COMPS BY SERVICE TYPE

39911

3768 4158

49483

4519 4997

IN-COUNTY DEVIATED FIXED ROUTE INTERCITY DIAL-A-RIDE

RAW PASSENGER COUNTS

Dec-24 Dec-23

26



IN-COUNTY RIDERSHIP BY ROUTE
YTD COMPS

18865

1283

12849

5519

1395 0

22555

2080

13293

7222

2266 2290

RT 1 (TOWN LOOP) RT 2 
(NETARTS/OCEANSIDE)

RT 3 (CANNON BEACH) RT 4 (LINCOLN CITY) RT 6 (PORT LOOP) PC SHUTTLE

Dec-24 Dec-23

27



DAR RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE
YTD COMPS

1755

2403

3401

1596

TILLAMOOK COUNTY PROGRAM

Dec-24 Dec-23

28



PASSENGER CATEGORIES
YTD COMPS

363

938

256

3873

360
625

1337

461

1368

631

RIDE CONNECTION TILLAMOOK BAY 
COMMUNITY COLLEGE

NWOTA VISITOR PASS YOUTH FREE AMTRAK

Dec-24 Dec-23

29



TOTAL SERVICES RIDERSHIP
December 2024  &  December 2023

7246

5883

629

480

738

583

2023

2024

In-County Inter-City DAR

30



31



32



Tillamook County Transportation District

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE REPORT December 2024

RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE Dec Dec YTD YTD YTD %
2024 2023 FY 24-25 FY 23-24 Change

Dial-A-Ride Service

Tillamook County 207 510 1,755 3,401 -48.4%

Program 376 228 2,403 1,596 50.6%

Dial-A-Ride Total 583 738 4,158 4,997 -16.8%

Deviated Fixed Route Service

Rt 1: Town Loop 2,894 3,691 18,865 22,555 -16.4%

Rt 2: Netarts/Oceanside 171 276 1,283 2,080 -38.3%

Rt 3: Manzanita/Cannon Beach 1,906 1,962 12,849 13,293 -3.3%

Rt 4: Lincoln City 704 995 5,519 7,222 -23.6%

Rt 6: Port of Tillamook Bay Loop 208 322 1,395 2,266 -38.4%

Pacific City Free Shuttle 0 0 0 2,067 -100.0%

Local Fixed Rt Total 5,883 7,246 39,911 49,483 -19.3%

Intercity Service

Rt 5: Portland 480 629 3,768 4,519 -16.6%

Inter City Total 480 629 3,768 4,519 -16.6%

TOTAL ALL SERVICES 6,946 8,613 47,837 58,999 -18.9%

ONE-WAY TRIPS BY USER GROUP (Allocated)

Fixed YTD YTD YTD %

USER GROUP Route DAR FY 24-25 FY 23-24 Change

General (18 years to 60 years of age) 3,818 93 26,873 32,085 -16.2%

Senior/Disabled 2,100 466 17,740 20,956 -15.3%

Child/Youth 445 24 3,224 3,890 -17.1%

Total 6,363 583 47,837 56,932 -16.0%

OTHER RIDER CATEGORIES Fixed YTD YTD YTD %

Route DAR FY 24-25 FY 23-24 Change

Ride Connection 35 363 724 -49.9%

Tillamook Bay Community College 137 938 1,428 -34.3%

NWOTA Visitor Pass 21 256 472 -45.8%

Program 376 2,403 1,596 50.6%

Youth Free 483 3,873 5,381 -28.0%

Amtrak 45 360 666 -45.9%

33



Coordinating Committee In-Person Meeting 
February 14, 2025 | 10:00 am—12:00 pm 

ALL VIRTUAL 
Join Zoom Meeting: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87552290259 

Call In: 1 253 215 8782 
Meeting ID: 875 5229 0259 

Agenda 

10:00- 
10:05a  Introductions Cynda Bruce 

10:05 -
10:10a 

 Consent Calendar (Action Item) 
January Meeting Minutes 
Financial Report   

Cynda Bruce/All 

10:10- 
10:30a 

NWOTA Standing Items 
Emissions/Ridership Tracking 
Website Updates: 

- Swiftly Updates
- Branding Updates
- Token Transit

Sarah Lu Heath 

10:30- 
10:40a E-Bike Policy Discussion

 
All 

11:00-
11:10a Bus Stop Project Update Brian Vitulli 

11:10- 
11:20a Zero Emission Vehicle Feasibility Study Brian Vitulli/ 

Sarah Lu Heath 

11:20- 
11:35a OCVA Service Pilot Proposal Update All 

11:35 – 
11:45a CWRides Collaboration Charlene Peche 

All 

11:45- 
11:50a 

New Business  
Travel Oregon Letter of Intent All 

11:50a- 
12:00p Member Updates All 

Attachments: 
January Meeting Minutes  
Ridership/Passenger Mile Tracking 

34

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87552290259


Meetings are open to the public and accommodations will be provided to persons with disabilities.  If 
a sign language interpreter is needed, please call Sarah Lu Heath at 971.328.2877 at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting. 

35



NWOTA Meeting Minutes 
January 10, 2025 

Hybrid meeting called to order at 10:08am. 

In attendance:  Debbie Boothe-Schmidt, Cynda Bruce, John Dreezsen, Cody Franz, Sarah Lu 
Heath, Brian Vitulli, and Chris Wheatley. 

The meeting began with well-deserved recognition of John Dreeszen’s service to Columbia County 
Rider and his retirement. This will be John’s last NWOTA meeting. In February, Chris Wheatley will 
take over as Director of CCR.  

Standing Items: 

Website Updates: MAC Collective joined the meeting to discuss updates to 
nwconnector.org’s accessibility features. MAC’s recommendations were accepted and 
applauded. Sarah Lu Heath updated the group on a meeting she coordinated between MAC 
and Swiftly. After the meeting all API access requests will be renewed. With staff from both 
agencies working directly together, the real time tracking should be available in the next 
several weeks.  

Marketing Update: Sarah Lu Heath is working on a letter of intent application to Travel 
Oregon to support NWConnector services marketing and advertising. Motion to approve full 
application if invited was made by Brian Vitulli, seconded by John Dreeszen, and passed 
unanimously.  

Ridership & Emissions tracking were reviewed. 

Consent Calendar:        Minutes and financials were reviewed. Motion to accept was made by John 
Dreeszen, seconded by Brian Vitulli and passed unanimously.  

E-Bike Policy Discussion:    Agencies noted further research needed for most concise language
and the need for driver training for updated policy. Cody Franz recommended we look at Lane
County Transit’s policy as a good example.

Bus Stop Project:   Brian Vitulli shared that he continues to work with Jordan Ramis on the RFP. He 
expects a draft will go to the group for review within a few days.  

Zero Emission Vehicle Feasibility Study:  Sarah Lu Heath provided updates: agencies are 
wrapping up data fulfillment for Gannett Fleming consultants. The next topic for the consultants 
will be the statewide procurement process. Video calls are scheduled with agencies that couldn’t 
otherwise provide electrical and power information.  

Other Business:    TCTD and SETD shared that the Oregon Coast Visitor’s Association request 
shared transit center use and to add new transit services to the region is ongoing. There are 
concerns about impacts off adding uncoordinated services to corridors already served by public 
transit.  

36



Member Updates:   TCTD STIF Formula planning is underway. They are seeking new buses with 
propane capabilities and two trolleys to serve as Pacific City and Tillamook circulators.  They have 
also upgraded facilities at the Transit Center to include a new ADA accessible doorway.  

CCR is working on the leadership transition, with John Dreeszen’s last day at the end of January. 
Chris Wheatley has been attending NWOTA and we welcome him as the permanent representative 
for the Columbia County Rider. Chris has been working with staff to improve social media presence. 
This has included outreach regarding employment opportunities, garnering two interviews to take 
place soon.  

SETD have received approval from their TAC and Board of Directors for their STIF plan. This includes 
a one year micro transit pilot. They are have employment opportunities for drivers and a HR 
professional.  

Cody Franz with ODOT reminded everyone that STIF applications are due January 16th. He also 
shared the good news that ODOT is filling many positions within their agency.  

Meeting was adjourned at  11:55am. 

37



Tillamook County Transportation District 
  “Connecting the community through sustainable transit services” 

3600 Third St. Ste A, Tillamook OR  97141  (503) 815-8283  Fax (503) 815-8005 
www.tillamookbus.com 

DATE: February 19, 2025 

TO: TCTD Board of Directors 

FROM:  Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

SUBJECT: GENERAL MANAGER REPORT  

Administration/Coordination 

• Served on the Maintenance and Operations Workgroup of the Oregon Legislature’s Joint
Committee on Transportation. The group had pre-session discussions to address the pressing
need for stable funding tools and multimodal investment to maintain and improve the
transportation system and ensure safety and accessibility for all Oregonians. Final Workgroup
meeting was held on January 16.

• ODOT’s Compliance Site Review was conducted on January 29th and 30th. Final report is
pending, but feedback from ODOT and their compliance consultant team is very favorable.

• Attended OTA Legislative Briefing event on February 4.
• Attended OTA Legislative Committee meeting on February 5.
• Attended 2025 SDAO Annual Conference February 6-9 in Bend, OR.
• Attended OTA Board of Directors meeting on February 11.
• Attended NWACT meeting on February 13.
• NWOTA meeting held on February 14.

Planning & Development 

• The Zero Emission Vehicle Feasibility Study is continuing. Data collection has been completed
and the consultant team is proceeding with analysis and document development. Project
coordination meeting held on January 30.

• The phase 1 Request for Qualifications is nearly complete for the NWOTA Bus Stop Access
Project. Phase 1 tasks include final design and obtaining permits for the three locations
(Pacific City, Hebo, Waldport), and a NEPA analysis of the Hebo location. The District will then
seek responses from three qualified firms and proceed with contracting.

• Met with consultants from Destination Management Advisors on January 24 regarding the
OCVA’s pilot shuttle proposal to operate duplicative service from Beaverton to Tillamook to
Cannon Beach, Seaside, and Astoria. Also met with NWOTA partners regrading this issue.

38



P a g e  | 2 

3600 Third St. Ste A, Tillamook OR  97141  (503) 815-8283  Fax (503) 815-2834 
www.tillamookbus.com 

Grant Funding 

• Submitted two, ODOT STIF-Discretionary grant applications for 1) New fire alarm system for
administration building and vehicle maintenance facility, and 2) Shelters for enhanced bus
stop infrastructure constructed as part of the U.S. 101 upgrade project in Garibaldi. ODOT
recommended approval of both projects to the Public Transportation Advisory Committee
(PTAC). PTAC approved funding for both projects – 100% of ask for the fire alarm system and
$71,997 (out of $80,000) for bus stop infrastructure in Garibaldi.  Oregon Transportation
Commission consideration is scheduled for March 3, 2025.

• Submitted Federal Formula (5310 & 5311) grant applications to ODOT on November 20, 2024.
Funding will be used for preventive maintenance, capital vehicle purchases, and operations.
Marie Mills Center, Inc. submitted for 5310 funds through the District as the lead agency.
Their award will be used for preventive maintenance of their fleet. PTAC consideration is
scheduled for March 3, 2025.

• FY 2025-2027 Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) Formula Funding Plan
application was submitted to ODOT on January 16, 2025 to cover the period July 1, 2025
through June 30, 2027. (The Board of Directors approved this Plan at January 2025 meeting.)
On February 10, TCTD received notification from ODOT that its FY 2025-2027 STIF Plan was
reviewed and determined to be complete with no changes. ODOT will recommend it to the
Public Transportation Advisory Committee for approval at their April meeting. Final approval
to be considered by the Oregon Transportation Commission at their May meeting.

Facility/Property Management 

• ADA controller installed on January 16 at the Transit Center to allow the westside doors to be
fully ADA accessible. (Board approved contract at December 2024 meeting.)

• Transit Center exterior / platform cleaning occurs weekly and on an as-needed basis.
• NW Rides Brokerage expansion is progressing rapidly.

Operations/Vehicle Maintenance 

• Request for Quotes for four new Category B buses issued on January 2, 2025. Vendor
responses were due on January 24, 2025, but delayed due to clarification of Altoona testing
requirements of gas engine Category B vehicles with propane conversion.

• Two new category B buses will enter production once all components are ordered. These
vehicles are long overdue, but progress is being made.

• Two heavy-duty Category B trolley-replica buses are in the procurement process.
• Two Category E1 DAR vans are currently being manufactured. These vehicles are long

overdue.

39



Regular Meeting January 15, 2025 

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting.  Only text enclosed in quotation 
marks report a speaker’s exact words. 

Tillamook County Transportation District 
Board of Directors Regular Monthly Meeting 
Wednesday, January 15, 2025 – 6:00PM  
Transportation Building 
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, OR  
Meeting Minutes 

1. Call to Order:   Board Chair Johnson called the meeting to order at 6:01 pm.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call:
Present 
TCTD Board of Directors  
Mary Johnson, Board Chair (via Zoom) 
Gary Hanenkrat, Director  
Marni Johnston, Treasurer (via Zoom) 
Linda Adler, Vice Chair (via Zoom) 
Jonathan Bean, Secretary 
Thomas Fiorelli, Director 

Absent 
TCTD Board of Directors 
None 

TCTD Staff 
Brian Vitulli, General Manager 
Cathy Bond, Finance Supervisor 
Jules Deputy, Brokerage Manager 
Michael Reed, Operations Superintendent 
Keri Brown, Admin Assistant/Board Clerk 

Guest  
Arla Miller, ODOT 
David McCall, Citizen 
John Cline, Citizen 

4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda: Added to Item 9: November 2024
Monthly Service Performance Report; added Item 17: Resolution 25-02 Adopting the
FY 2025-2027 STIF Formula Fund Plan and Authorizing the General Manager to
Submit the FY 2025-2027 STIF Formula Fund Plan Application

5. Public & Guest Comments: David McCall let everyone know that GM Vitulli went
above and beyond when his (David) City vehicle broke down. GM Vitulli stayed until
the tow truck driver came, which was about an hour and a half later and gave him a
ride back to town.

6. Executive Session: None.

40



Regular Meeting January 15, 2025 

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting.  Only text enclosed in quotation 
marks report a speaker’s exact words. 

7. Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2: Re-establishing and Amending Ordinance
No. 2; Establishing TCTD Fare Zones, Categories, and Rates; and Establishing
an Effective Date.

STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT 

8. Financial and Grant Report: FS Bond reviewed the November 2024 financials
included in the Board packet pages 6-31.

Director Hanenkrat asked about item 18924 on page 7 regarding Quick Cab LLC
charge, questioned why it wasn’t charged to NW Rides Brokerage. FS Bond explained
that it was a fee for service for a dialysis patient.

Director Adler asked why NW Rides doesn’t cover this. FS Bond said that TCTD will
pay, but ODOT and Care Oregon will help offset the cost once the Dialysis Clinic is
open. Until then, it will continue to be covered under TCTD’s human services grant.

Director Fiorelli stated that he appreciates what the District does for dialysis patients
and asked who Ryan’s Transportation Service is. FS Bond explained that he has many
employees that work for him and many vehicles in the network.

Director Adler stated that the NW Rides Ecolane training should have been for NW
Rides only. FS Bond stated that she does the financial reporting for deviated fixed-
route, DAR, and NW Rides including volunteer services, and is a super-user of this
software. This professional development opportunity allowed her to increase her
knowledge of Ecolane, as well as receive a Manager and Executive Director Training
certificate.

9. Service Measure Performance Report: OS Reed provided service statistics and
performance measures for the month of November 2024 and are included in the
Board packet pages 32-40.

Director Fiorelli asked that with Ordinance 2 being amended, will there be a
significant difference in fare revenue. OS Reed stated that fare revenue would not
be impacted because it was primarily being amended to remove discontinued
services such as intercity Routes 60x and 70x. TCTD is going to start tracking
bicycles carried on vehicles and will make the process easy for drivers. Starting in
April, farebox reporting will be a different process, with STIF funding being
incorporated to help with the reduced fare recovery.

10. Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance: GM Vitulli provided updates on the January
meeting, with details included in the Board packet pages 41-43.

Director Fiorelli asked if he would be able to see the letter that NWOTA is submitting
to OCVA’s proposal. GM Vitulli stated that NWOTA has not yet submitted a letter.
Director Fiorelli stated that he has confidence in the NWOTA team to make the right
decision.

41



Regular Meeting January 15, 2025 

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting.  Only text enclosed in quotation 
marks report a speaker’s exact words. 

11. NW Rides Brokerage: BM Deputy provided the following updates:
a. Reviewed ride statistics for 2023 vs 2024 Calendar Year.
b. The rides that were provided were 51,002 in 2024 over 47,033 in 2023.

Mileage reimbursement rides were 17,761 in 2024 over 17,373 in 2023.
Volunteer rides were 7,774 in 2024 over 6,586 in 2023.

c. Providers had an increase of approximately 4000 rides in 2024. Mileage
reimbursement increased by a little under 400 rides. Volunteers performed
1,208 more rides in 2024, than 2023.

d. Miles driven by providers were 1,164,232 in 2024 over 1,119237 in 2023.
Mileage reimbursement miles were 766,388 in 2024 over 740,170 in 2023.
Volunteer miles in 2024 were 341,697 over 284,528 in 2023.

e. Providers had an increase of approximately 45,000 miles in 2024. Mileage
reimbursement increased by a little over 26,000 miles. Volunteers drove over
57,000 miles further in 2024.

f. Tillamook Family Counseling Center has moved out of their office, and we are
working with vendors for the build-out of that space for NW Rides.

12. General Manager Report: GM Vitulli provided the following updates included in
Board packet pages 44-45 (see GM Report in packet for details):

a. Administration/Coordination
b. Planning Development
c. Grant Funding
d. Facility/Property Development
e. Operations and Vehicle Maintenance

Director Hanenkrat asked how many more drivers are needed to be able to restore 
services. GM Vitulli stated we would need to have at least 5 to 10 more drivers. OS 
Reed stated that we need 4 to restore where we were before reducing services. We 
used to have 5 full-time Dial-A-Ride drivers, and now we have part-time drivers 
working full-time hours. Reinstating Sunday service would not be advisable at this 
time. 

Director Adler asked when the Transit Center will be open. GM Vitulli stated we 
currently have the Transit Center staffed on Friday and Saturday, but we need to fill 
the vacancy for a customer service representative. Until that happens, the Transit 
Center will remain open only on those days. Director Adler asked if there was any 
thought about operating the trolley in Pacific City in 2025. GM Vitulli stated that is the 
intent, but it will be determined by the number of new drivers.  

Director Fiorelli commended the work on studying the feasibility of operating zero 
emission vehicles and how we are transitioning the fleet by purchasing new vehicles 
to operate using propane(LPG). Regarding the 16 new employees, did the District 
pay for training for their CDL only to have them leave to work somewhere else. GM 
Vitulli stated that we have 8 remaining employees, 1 left for a different position, 
some could not pass the medical portion of the CDL requirement, and others no 
longer remain due to other issues. There are 3 that are trained and now performing 
DAR services. Director Fiorelli asked if 50% retention is average. GM Vitulli stated  

42



Regular Meeting January 15, 2025 

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting.  Only text enclosed in quotation 
marks report a speaker’s exact words. 

that number is reasonable considering the employee market in this area. FS Bond 
stated that only 1 driver received their CDL but then left. OS Reed stated that he is 
responsible for hiring and with the new training program everyone will have the 
same training. The District is placing an emphasis on who we hire, do they line up 
with our Mission. The new drivers that are coming through feel confident and are a 
good fit to succeed with the District. 

GM Vitulli stated that the Dialysis Clinic is still not operational as shared with the 
community in November and December. As we all wait for its opening, TCTD is still 
providing patients with transportation to travel outside of Tillamook County for 
treatments. GM Vitulli will reach out again for an update. 

13. Miscellaneous: None.

CONSENT CALENDAR 
14. Motion by Director Fiorelli to Approve the Minutes of December 18, 2024, Regular

Board Meeting. Seconded by Director Hanenkrat.
Motion Passed 

By Directors Bean, Fiorelli, Hanenkrat, and Johnston. 
Director Adler and Chair Johnson recused themselves, 

as they were not at the meeting. 

15. Motion by Director Fiorelli to Approve November Financial Statements. Seconded by
Director Bean.

Motion Passed 
By Directors Bean, Fiorelli, Hanenkrat, 

Johnston, Adler and Chair Johnson. 

ACTION ITEMS 
16. Motion by Director Fiorelli to Approve Resolution 25-01 Authorizing the General

Manager to Execute ODOT Section 5304 Grant Agreement No. 35707. Seconded by
Chair Johnson.

Motion Passed 
By Directors Bean, Fiorelli, Hanenkrat, 

Johnston, Adler and Chair Johnson. 

17. Motion by Director Fiorelli to Approve Resolution 25-02 Adopting the FY 2025-2027
STIF Formula Fund Plan and Authorizing the General Manager to Submit the FY
2025-2027 STIF Formula Fund Plan Application. Seconded by Director Adler.

Motion Passed 
By Directors Bean, Fiorelli, Hanenkrat, 

Johnston, Adler and Chair Johnson. 

43



Regular Meeting January 15, 2025 

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting.  Only text enclosed in quotation 
marks report a speaker’s exact words. 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

18. Board Vacancy – Position 1:

The Board discussed whether to proceed with filling the current Board vacancy by
seeking applications or waiting until the May 2025 election. Director Hanenkrat stated
to wait until the May election. Director Fiorelli and Adler agreed. Director Adler stated
that it will have to be put onto the ballot form. Chair Johnson stated to leave it open
until the May Elections. Director Fiorelli and Director Hanenkrat both agreed.

Director Bean stated that if the Board seeks to fill the vacancy, it could be a good
opportunity for the new member to test their role before deciding whether to place their
name on the May ballot. With May elections they wouldn’t start until July.

Director Fiorelli stated that with Chair Johnson back that he doesn’t anticipate there
will be issues seeking a quorum, so waiting until the election should not be an issue.

Chair Johnson stated that there would be no harm in posting notice that the District is
seeking candidates for the vacant Board position. Director Adler agreed. Director
Fiorelli stated that he would not oppose it. The Board instructed GM Vitulli to start the
application process for vacant Board Position 1.

19. Staff Comments:

General Manager Vitulli: Stated that the February meeting will have two ODOT grant
agreements for consideration and thanked everyone for their support.

Operations Superintendent Reed: None

Finance Supervisor Bond: Stated that the holiday employee party was a great
success. Thanked everyone who came to help. Drivers were surprised to see OS
Reed, GM Vitulli and FS Bond come in so early to serve them breakfast. Operations
Coordinator Cristel Scott was announced as the 2024 Employee of the Year. Ms. Scott
provides operations assistance and is the primary trainer for all drivers. She began
her career with TCTD as a Transit Driver before becoming a Dispatcher, and is
currently the Operations Coordinator.

Brokerage Manager Deputy: Stated Happy 2025 and looking forward to a positive and
productive New Year.

Admin Assistant Brown: None

20. Board of Directors Comments:

Chair Johnson: None

Vice Chair Adler: Stated Happy New Year.

44



Regular Meeting January 15, 2025 

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting.  Only text enclosed in quotation 
marks report a speaker’s exact words. 

Dir. Hanenkrat: None 

Dir. Johnston: Thanked FS Bond for the party, it was a great time and good food. 
Happy New Year. 

Dir. Bean: None. 

Dir. Fiorelli: Announced that his work is taking him out of state for periods of time but 
will maintain his residency here in Tillamook County. Wants to retain his seat on the 
Board of Directors.  

21. Adjournment: Board Chair Johnson adjourned the meeting at 7:49 pm.

These minutes were approved this 19th day of February 2025. 

ATTEST: 

     Mary Johnson, Board Chair      Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

45



45039-27477 4901-7879-6805.3

BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE 

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

Re-establishing and Amending ) 
Ordinance No. 2;  ) 
Establishing TCTD Fare Zones, ) 
Categories, and Rates; and ) ORDINANCE NO.  2 
Establishing an Effective Date ) 

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (“District”) is an Oregon 
transportation district organized under ORS Chapter 267, with the power to fix and 
collect charges for the use of its system; and 

WHEREAS, the District has determined that in order to make its transportation services 
economically sustainable, it needs to update its fare zones, categories, and rates 
(collectively, the “Fare Structure”); and 

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Directors (“Board”) adopted Ordinance No. 2 with an 
effective date of March 1, 2013, establishing District fare zones and fare categories; and 

WHEREAS, the Board adopted Ordinance No. 21-02 with an effective date of July 1, 
2021, repealing Ordinance No. 2 and establishing District fare zones and fare 
categories; and 

WHEREAS, the Fare Structure for transportation services shall be established by the 
Board from time to time by ordinance; and  

WHEREAS, the District conducted an evaluation of its Fare Structure  on May 20, 2021, 
following a public notice and public hearing; and 

WHEREAS, the District discontinued intercity 70X services between Salem and Grande 
Ronde on June 23, 2023, and discontinued intercity 60X services between Lincon City 
and Salem on December 10, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is necessary to repeal Ordinance No. 21-
02 and to re-adopt and amend Ordinance No. 2 to accomplish the District’s goals of 
making fares simpler and more affordable and enhancing the ability of people to travel 
to jobs, shopping, and other destinations within the District’s system and to update the 
Fare Structure.  

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDAINED: 

As of the effective date of this Ordinance, Ordinance No. 21-02 and all prior resolutions, 
policies, and motions relating to the District’s Fare Structure are hereby repealed. 

That within seven days after adoption of this ordinance, the enrolled ordinance shall be 
filed in the records of the District, and a certified copy shall be filed with the Tillamook 
County Clerk. 

46



45039-27477 4901-7879-6805.3

Section 1: Transportation Fare Zones 

For the purposes of determining fare charges for transportation services: 
A. The District shall consist of, and operate as a single fare zone for transportation
services within Tillamook County; between Tillamook County and Lincoln County and
between Tillamook County and Clatsop County; and for intercity transportation services
between Tillamook and downtown Portland.

Section 2: Fare Categories 

TCTD hereby establishes the following Fare Categories for transportation services 
provided by or through the District.  

Category Description 

Full Fare Passengers who do not fall under any other fare category. 
Child Fare Passengers up to 12 years of age (inclusive) 
Youth Fare Passengers 13 years of age up to 18 years of age (inclusive) 
Reduced Fare Passengers age 60+ or who qualify as disabled, according to criteria of TCTD reduced 

fare policy. 
Special Program Fare Passengers using transportation service provided under a special program offered by, 

through or on behalf of TCTD. 

47



45039-27477 4901-7879-6805.3

Section 3: Fare Rates 

The fares for each Fare Category are hereby established as the Fares listed on 
Attachment A, “TCTD Fare Rates by Passenger Category,” which is incorporated by this 
reference. 

Section 4: Modifications to Fare Rates 

The fares for each Fare Category in Attachment A may be modified by Resolution of the 
District Board. 
Section 5: Effective Date 
The effective date of Ordinance No. 2 will be February 19, 2025 

Passed and adopted by the District Board this 19th day of February 2025 and signed by 
the Board Chair and Board Clerk in authentication of its passage. 

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

First Reading:  December 18, 2024 
Board Chair, Mary Johnson 

Second Reading:  January 15, 2025 
Attest: 

Effective Date:  February 19, 2025 

Board Clerk, Keri Brown 

48



45039-27477 4901-7879-6805.3

ATTACHMENT A 
TCTD Fare Structure and Rates by Passenger Category 

Full Fare Reduced 
Fare 

Child/Youth 
Fare* 

Tillamook County Routes (Deviated Fixed Routes) 
Single Fare (per route) $1.00 $0.50 Free 
Day Pass $3.00 $1.50 Free 
Monthly Pass $30.00 $20.00 Free 
Single Fare with Deviation $2.00 $1.50 N/A 
Deviation 10-Trip Pass $10.00 N/A N/A 
Dial-A-Ride 
Single Fare up to 5 miles $4.00 $2.00 $2.00 
Per additional mile beyond 5 
miles $0.50 $0.50 $0.50 

Intercity Route 5 (Portland Coastliner) 
Single Fare $15.00 N/A $7.50 
10-Trip Pass $120.00 N/A $60.00 
Special Programs 
3-Day NWOTA Visitor Pass $25.00 N/A N/A 
7-Day NWOTA Visitor Pass $30.00 N/A N/A 

* The first two children age 0-12 are free on Dial-A-Ride and intercity routes with a paying adult.

Child/Youth Fare and Reduced Fare Criteria 
Children and youth age 0-18 are not charged a fare for fixed-route trips within Tillamook 
County (including connections to Lincoln City and Cannon Beach), not including 
deviation trips, which are charged a reduced fare. 
The first two children age 0-12 are not charged a fare when accompanied by a paying 
adult. Additional children age 0-12, and youth (age 13-18), are eligible for a reduced 
fare on Dial-A-Ride and intercity routes. 
Youth age 13-18 may be asked to show a middle or high school student identification 
card (or alternative) for age verification. 
Passengers who have a long or short-term disability or are 60 years of age or older, are 
eligible for the Reduced Fare.  
TCTD Employees, Board Members and State of Oregon Public Transit Employees 
TCTD employees, spouses and dependents are eligible to ride The Wave fixed routes 
free with District authorized identification. Employees who have retired after five (5) 
years or more in good standing are eligible to ride The Wave fixed routes free with 
District authorized identification. 
TCTD Board Members, spouses and dependents are eligible to ride The Wave fixed 
routes free with District authorized identification.  TCTD Board Members who have 
served on the board for at least one (1) year are eligible to ride The Wave fixed routes 
for free with District authorized identification.  Board Members removed from office by 

49



45039-27477 4901-7879-6805.3

recall or convicted of a crime related to their service on the Board are not eligible for this 
benefit. 
Employees of public transit agencies in the State of Oregon are eligible to ride fixed 
route services free with valid identification issued by such an agency. 
Special Programs 
Group Pass Programs will be negotiated on a case-by-case basis with public or private 
entities. 
Veterans may ride all deviated fixed routes free of charge on Veterans Day with a valid 
VA ID Card. 

Dial-A-Ride to Fixed Route Transfers 

In-county Dial-A-Ride passengers requesting rides for the purpose of transfer onto any 
fixed route services will be provided such transportation free of charge, provided that the 
transfer is to the nearest fixed route bus stop. Transfers to any other location within the 
District’s system will be provided at standard Dial-A-Ride rates. 

50



Tillamook County Transportation District 
Budget Calendar 
FY 2025 – 2026 

February 19, 2025 
@ Board Meeting Appoint Budget Officer 
March 19, 2025 
@ Board Meeting 

Appoint New Budget Committee Members (if necessary) 

April 9, 2025 Review Draft Budget with Treasurer 

April 16, 2025 
@ Board Meeting 

Distribute Draft Budget to Board 

April 16, 2025 Distribute Draft Budget to Budget Committee 

April 22, 2025 
(due 4/16/25) 

Publish 1st Notice of Budget Committee Meeting (no more than 30 days prior to 
meeting.) The Notice must contain the date, time and location of the first budget 
committee meeting scheduled for receiving the proposed budget, hearing the budget 
message, and taking questions and comments from the public. Notice will be posted 
in the newspaper and on the District’s website. Notice must contain website address. 

May 6, 2025 
(due 4/30/25) 

Publish 2st Notice of Budget Committee Meeting (no less than 5 days prior to 
meeting.) The Notice must contain the date, time and location of the first budget 
committee meeting scheduled for receiving the proposed budget, hearing the budget 
message, and taking questions and comments from the public. Notice will be posted 
in the newspaper and on the District’s website. Notice must contain website address. 

May 14, 2025 
@ 6:00pm 

Budget Committee Meeting  Present budget message and comprehensive outline 
of the proposed 2025-2026 budget. Public comment will be taken. Next budget 
meeting (if necessary) will be scheduled at this meeting. 

May 27, 2025 

(due 5/21/25) 

Publish Notice of Budget Hearing & LB-1 (No more than 30, no less than 5 days 
prior to budget hearing.) At the same time you publish the budget summary, you must 
also publish a notice of the budget hearing. The hearing notice gives the place and 
time of the hearing (ORS 294.438, renumbered from 294.416). The same publication 
methods described for the notice of budget committee meeting are used: Unlike the 
notice of budget committee meeting, if the hearing notice is by newspaper, only one 
publication is required and there is no internet publication option. The Notice must 
include Forms LB-1. 

June 18, 2025 
@ Board Meeting 

Budget Public Hearing  Hold public hearing on the budget as approved by the 
budget committee.  Expenditure adjustments, if any, are restricted to $5,000 or 10%, 
whichever is greater, of the amount approved for each fund by the budget committee. 
Board adopts budget by resolution to appropriate funds and impose and categorize 
taxes. 

June 27, 2025 
Deadline to Certify the 2025-26 Tax Levy to the County Assessor.  Deliver two 
copies each of the Tax Certification LB-50 form & Resolution Adopting the Budget. 

June 27, 2025 Deliver a complete Budget document to Tillamook County Clerk Office. 
Resolution only unless requested by Clerk’s office. 

June 27, 2025 Submit final document to ODOT. Email to: ODOTPTDReporting@odot.oregon.gov 

*Please note that
bolded action items are 
required by budget law 

51

mailto:ODOTPTDReporting@odot.oregon.gov


1 

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT POLICY 

REASONABLE MODIFICATION Number: 32 

Adopted by the Board of Directors on July 16, 2015 
EffectiveLast reviewed: February 19, 2025July 17, 2015 Pages: 5 

1. Purpose

The purpose of this reasonable modification policy is to ensure that Tillamook
County Transportation District (TCTD) offers people with disabilities equal access
to public transportation services to be in full compliance with the provisions of the
Title II of the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 and Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973.

2. Policy

TCTD is committed to providing qualified individuals with disabilities opportunity to
have equal access to all programs, services and activities by:

1. Recognizing that individuals with disabilities may need reasonable
modification to policies and procedures.

2. Adhering to all applicable federal and state laws, regulations and guidelines
with respect to providing reasonable modifications

3. Not discriminate on the basis of disability in admission to, participation in, or
receipt of services and benefits under any transit program or activity.

4. Take appropriate steps to ensure that persons with disabilities have an
equal opportunity to participate.

3. Reasonable Modifications

A reasonable modification is a change or exception to a policy, practice, or
procedure that allows disabled individuals to have equal access to programs,
services, and activities. TCTD will make reasonable modifications to policies,
practices and procedures when necessary to ensure access to transit services for
qualified individuals with disabilities, unless:

1. Making the accommodation would fundamentally alter the nature of the
public transportation service.

52



2 

2. Making the accommodation would create a direct threat to the health or
safety of others including passengers.

3. The individual with a disability is able to fully use the TCTD’s service without
the accommodation being made.

For the purposes of this section, the term reasonable accommodation shall be 
interpreted in a manner consistent with the term ‘‘reasonable modifications’’ as set 
forth in the Americans with Disabilities Act title II regulations at 28 CFR 
35.130(b)(7), and not as it is defined or interpreted for the purposes of employment 
discrimination under title I of the ADA (42 U.S.C. 12111–12112) and its 
implementing regulations at 29 CFR part 1630. 

4. Eligibility Criteria

An individual is eligible to be considered to receive a reasonable modification if that
individual has: a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more
of the major life activities of such individual; a record of such impairment; or been
regarded as having such impairment.

5. Requests for Reasonable Modifications

TCTD shall make information about how to contact the District to make requests
for reasonable modifications readily available to the public through its website and
rider policy guidelines and follow these procedures in taking requests:

1. Individuals requesting modifications shall describe what they need in order
to use the service.

2. Individuals requesting modifications are not required to use the term
‘‘reasonable modification’’ when making a request. Personnel at TCTD will
determine if the request represents a reasonable modification and
proceed in accommodating the request accordingly.

3. Whenever feasible, TCTD requests that individuals make such requests for
modifications in advance if it is possible to do so before TCTD is expected
to provide the modified service.

4. Where a request for modification cannot practicably be made and
determined in advance (e.g., because of a condition or barrier at the
destination of a paratransit, demand response, or fixed route trip of which
the individual with a disability was unaware until arriving), operating
personnel shall make a determination of whether the modification should
be provided at the time of the request. Operating personnel may consult

53



3 

with TCTD’s management before making a determination to grant or deny 
the request. 

Requests for accommodation may be made either orally or in writing. The 
reasonable accommodation process begins as soon as the request for 
accommodation is made. 

The request can be submitted in any written format. Alternative means of filing a 
request, such as personal interviews, phone calls, or taped requests, will be made 
available for persons with disabilities if unable to communicate their request in 
writing or upon request. 

6. Interactive Process

When a request for accommodation is made, TCTD and the individual requesting
an accommodation must engage in a good faith interactive process to determine
what, if any accommodation shall be provided. The individual and the District must
communicate with each other about the request, the process for determining
whether an accommodation will be provided, and the potential accommodations.
Communication is a priority throughout the entire process.

7. Time Frame for Processing Requests and Providing Reasonable Modification

TCTD will process requests for reasonable accommodation and then provide
accommodations, where appropriate, in as short a time frame as reasonably
possible. The District recognizes, however, that the time necessary to process a
request will depend on the nature of the accommodation(s) requested and whether
it is necessary to obtain supporting information.

8. Granting a Reasonable Modification Request

As soon as TCTD determines that a reasonable accommodation will be provided,
that decision shall be immediately communicated to the individual. This notice
must be in writing in order to maintain the required information for reporting
purposes. Upon request, alternative means of response will be provided.

In choosing among alternatives for meeting nondiscrimination and accessibility
requirements with respect to new, altered, or existing facilities, or designated or
specified transportation services, the District shall give priority to those methods
that offer services, programs, and activities to qualified individuals with disabilities

54



4 

in the most integrated setting appropriate to the needs of individuals with 
disabilities. 

9. Denying a Reasonable Modification Request

As soon as TCTD determines that a request for reasonable accommodation will be
denied, the District will communicate the basis for the decision in writing to the
individual requesting the modification. The explanation for the denial will clearly
state:

1. the specific reasons for the denial;

2. any alternative accommodation that may create the same access to transit
services as requested by the individual; and

3. the opportunity to file a complaint relative to the TCTD’s decision on the
request.

10. Complaint Process

The TCTD process for investigating and tracking complaints from qualified
individuals includes procedures to be posted on the District’s website and will be
provided to any individual where the TCTD has denied a request for
accommodation. The process and any forms necessary to file a complaint are
readily available from the web. Alternative means of filing complaints, such as
personal interviews, phone calls, or taped requests, will be made available for
persons with disabilities if unable to communicate their request in writing or upon
request.

Any person who believes she or he has been discriminated against in obtaining a
reasonable modification may file a complaint by completing and submitting a TCTD
Reasonable Modification Complaint Form.  The District will begin investigating the
complaint no more than 30 days after receipt. Once a completed complaint is
received the complainant will be sent an acknowledgement of receipt. If more
information is needed to resolve the complaint, the District may contact the
complainant. The complainant has 30 business days from the date of the letter to
send requested information to TCTD.

If TCTD is not contacted by the complainant or does not receive the additional
information within 30 business days, the District may administratively close the
complaint. A complaint may be administratively closed also if the complainant no
longer wishes to pursue their case.

55



5 

After the District investigates the complaint, a decision will be rendered in writing to 
the complainant. TCTD will issue either a Letter of Closure or Letter of Finding. 

1. Letter of Finding – This letter will summarizes the complaint, any interviews
conducted regarding the complaint, and explains what actions will be taken
by TCTD to address the complaint.

2. Letter of Closure – This letter will explain why TCTD has determined that the
complaint does not merit accommodation under the Americans with
Disabilities Act and that the complaint will be closed.

If the complainant disagrees with the District’s decision an opportunity to appeal 
the decision may be pursued provided the complaint files notice of appeal within 21 
days of the initial decision. 

In the event of appeal, the complainant will be granted all due process, including 
the ability to present additional evidence, present the case in person during an 
appeal hearing, and to be represented by counsel. 

11. Designated Employee

TCTD shall designate one official within the organization responsible for
processing reasonable modification requests and handling complaints. This
individual is:

Doug Pilant, General Manager
3600 3rd Street
Tillamook, OR 97141
503-842-8283
dpilantinfo@tillamookbus.com

12. Record Retention

TCTD will maintain all records related to reasonable modification requests and
denials as per the District’s Documents and Records Retention Policy #11 in
accordance to OAR 166-150-0005.

56



TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION

JULIENE DEPUTY

3600 3RD ST  STE A

TILLAMOOK, OR 97141-2730

Phone: (503) 354-8085

Fax: (503) 815-2834

Tillamook County, NW Rides, NEMT Facility Furniture, WITH Delivery & Installation

Qty Description Options List Price Price Each Ext. Price

1 3 Stage Height Adjustable Table 

Base, 24"D C-Leg, Corner Post

FIN: Silver $2,375.00 $778.05 $778.05

1 23x40x70x23 Left Extended Curved 

Corner WS TOP ONLY, for use with 

My-Hite base within Workstation 

Application

LAM: Bark\PVC: Bark\ $1,017.00 $333.17 $333.17

1 23"D x 30"W Interra WS TOP ONLY, 

Cross Grain, for use with My-Hite 

base within Workstation 

Application

LAM: Bark\PVC: Bark $422.00 $138.25 $138.25

1 Anti-Sag Bar, 42" wide $124.00 $40.62 $40.62

1 Flat bracket - Pair, for MY-HITE 

WORKSURFACE EXTENSION

$40.00 $13.10 $13.10

1 Box/File Pedestal Mobile FIN: Silver\Bar Pull, Metal 

Finish

$940.00 $307.94 $307.94

1 36"W ROUND TOP for Conference 

table, TOP ONLY (order base 

separately)

Bark M23\PVC: Bark $638.00 $209.01 $209.01

1 Table Base with (3) legs, INSET, for 

use with ROUND Table Top (30-

42"W only)

FIN: Silver $1,205.00 $394.76 $394.76

1 File with Cabinet #30630 Warm Ash 

Laminate/Frosted Glass 

Doors/Brushed Nickel 

Frame

$1,758.00 $860.34 $860.34

2 Nesting Mesh Training Chair Grey Mesh Back/Grey 

Fabric Seat/Silver Frame

$998.00 $178.96 $357.92

Subtotal $3,433.16

January 31, 2025

Quote QL342212 v(1)
Fax: 

Phone: (503) 842-0500

TILLAMOOK, OR 97141

3600 3RD ST  STE A

CATHY BOND

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DIS

Office 2

Copy Area

2/13/2025Tillamook Co, NW Rides, NEMT Facility Furniture, WITH Delivery & Install, QUOTE 
57



1 Storage Cabinet w/Solid Doors Warm Ash 

Laminate/Brushed Nickel 

Accents

$689.00 $336.18 $336.18

Subtotal $336.18

1 3 Stage Height Adjustable Table 

Base, 24"D C-Leg, Corner Post

FIN: Silver $2,375.00 $778.05 $778.05

1 23x40x70x23 Left Extended Curved 

Corner WS TOP ONLY, for use with 

My-Hite base within Workstation 

Application

LAM: Bark\PVC: Bark\Does 

Not Apply

$1,017.00 $333.17 $333.17

1 23"D x 30"W Interra WS TOP ONLY, 

Cross Grain, for use with My-Hite 

base within Workstation 

Application

LAM: Bark\PVC: Bark $422.00 $138.25 $138.25

1 Anti-Sag Bar, 42" wide $124.00 $40.62 $40.62

1 Flat bracket - Pair, for MY-HITE 

WORKSURFACE EXTENSION

$40.00 $13.10 $13.10

1 Box/File Pedestal Mobile FIN: Silver\Bar Pull, Metal 

Finish

$940.00 $307.94 $307.94

1 Open Bookcase Warm Ash $459.00 $223.86 $223.86

1 File with Cabinet Warm Ash 

Laminate/Frosted Glass 

Doors/Brushed Nickel 

Frame

$1,758.00 $860.34 $860.34

Subtotal $2,695.33

2 3 Stage Height Adjustable Table 

Base, 24"D C-Leg, Corner Post

FIN: Silver $4,750.00 $778.05 $1,556.10

1 23x40x70x23 Left Extended Curved 

Corner WS TOP ONLY, for use with 

My-Hite base within Workstation 

Application

LAM: Bark\PVC: Bark\Does 

Not Apply

$1,017.00 $333.17 $333.17

1 23x40x70x23 Right Extended 

Curved Corner WS TOP ONLY, for 

use with My-Hite base within 

Workstation Application

LAM: Bark\PVC: Bark\Does 

Not Apply

$1,017.00 $333.17 $333.17

2 23"D x 24"W Interra WS TOP ONLY, 

Cross Grain, for use with My-Hite 

base within Workstation 

Application

LAM: Bark\PVC: Bark $736.00 $120.56 $241.12

2 Anti-Sag Bar, 42" wide $248.00 $40.62 $81.24

2 Flat bracket - Pair, for MY-HITE 

WORKSURFACE EXTENSION

$80.00 $13.10 $26.20

2 Box/File Pedestal Mobile FIN: Silver\Bar Pull, Metal 

Finish

$1,880.00 $307.94 $615.88

2 Open Bookcase Warm Ash $918.00 $223.86 $447.72

Office 3

Office 4

2/13/2025Tillamook Co, NW Rides, NEMT Facility Furniture, WITH Delivery & Install, QUOTE 
58



2 Two Drawer Lateral File Warm Ash 

Laminate/Brushed Nickel 

Handles

$2,058.00 $373.62 $747.24

Subtotal $4,381.84

1 3 Stage Height Adjustable Table 

Base, 24"D C-Leg, Corner Post

FIN: Silver $2,375.00 $778.05 $778.05

1 23x40x70x23 Left Extended Curved 

Corner WS TOP ONLY, for use with 

My-Hite base within Workstation 

Application

LAM: Bark\PVC: Bark\Does 

Not Apply

$1,017.00 $333.17 $333.17

1 23"D x 24"W Interra WS TOP ONLY, 

Cross Grain, for use with My-Hite 

base within Workstation 

Application

LAM: Bark\PVC: Bark $368.00 $120.56 $120.56

1 Anti-Sag Bar, 42" wide $124.00 $40.62 $40.62

1 Flat bracket - Pair, for MY-HITE 

WORKSURFACE EXTENSION

$40.00 $13.10 $13.10

1 Box/File Pedestal Mobile FIN: Silver\Bar Pull, Metal 

Finish

$940.00 $307.94 $307.94

1 File with Cabinet Warm Ash 

Laminate/Frosted Glass 

Doors/Brushed Nickel 

Frame

$1,758.00 $860.34 $860.34

Subtotal $2,453.78

1 Buffet Credenza Warm Ash 

Laminate/Brushed Nickel 

Accents

$908.00 $598.26 $598.26

1 File with Cabinet Warm Ash 

Laminate/Frosted Glass 

Doors/Brushed Nickel 

Frame

$1,758.00 $860.34 $860.34

12 Nesting Mesh Training Chair Grey Mesh Back/Grey 

Fabric Seat/Silver Frame

$5,988.00 $178.96 $2,147.52

Subtotal $3,606.12

2 48"H Wall Start FINISH: Silver $220.00 $36.04 $72.08

2 Draw Rod, 48"H $64.00 $10.48 $20.96

2 48"H Same Height Draw Rod $64.00 $10.48 $20.96

3 53"H 2-Way 90 Deg Connector 

Hard Surface

FINISH: Silver $636.00 $69.45 $208.35

4 67"H 3-Way 90 Deg Connector 

Hard Surface

FINISH: Silver $1,220.00 $99.92 $399.68

2 67"H 4-Way 90 Deg Connector 

Hard Surface

FINISH: Silver $714.00 $116.95 $233.90

Supervisor Stations/ Team Space

Office 5

Training/ Conference 7

2/13/2025Tillamook Co, NW Rides, NEMT Facility Furniture, WITH Delivery & Install, QUOTE 
59



2 67"H 3-Way 120 Deg Connector 

Post Hard Surface

FINISH: Silver $808.00 $132.35 $264.70

2 67"H Ceiling POWER Entry, Internal 

Direct Connect, 4 Circuit

BASE: Silver\FINISH: Silver $1,972.00 $323.01 $646.02

14 53"H Finished End FINISH: Silver $1,344.00 $31.45 $440.30

12 14" Finished End Change of Height, 

For Connector

FINISH: Silver $1,152.00 $31.45 $377.40

14 24"W x 53"H Monolithic panel, 

fabric covered, partial glazed, non-

powered

FINISH: Silver\GLASS: 

Clear\BASE: Silver\FAB 1: 

Group 1 Friant 

Collection\SIDE 1 FABRIC: 

Journey Odyssey\FAB 2: 

Group 1 Friant 

Collection\SIDE 2 FABRIC: 

Journey Odyssey

$11,676.00 $273.22 $3,825.08

1 30"W x 53"H Monolithic panel, 

fabric covered, partial glazed, non-

powered

FINISH: Silver\GLASS: 

Clear\BASE: Silver\FAB 1: 

Group 1 Friant 

Collection\SIDE 1 FABRIC: 

Journey Odyssey\FAB 2: 

Group 1 Friant 

Collection\SIDE 2 FABRIC: 

Journey Odyssey

$904.00 $296.15 $296.15

4 36"W x 53"H Monolithic panel, 

fabric covered, partial glazed, non-

powered

FINISH: Silver\GLASS: 

Clear\BASE: Silver\FAB 1: 

Group 1 Friant 

Collection\SIDE 1 FABRIC: 

Journey Odyssey\FAB 2: 

Group 1 Friant 

Collection\SIDE 2 FABRIC: 

Journey Odyssey

$4,332.00 $354.79 $1,419.16

6 48"W x 67"H Monolithic panel, 

fabric covered, partial glazed, 

powered

FINISH: Silver\GLASS: 

Clear\BASE: Silver\FAB 1: 

Group 1 Friant 

Collection\SIDE 1 FABRIC: 

Journey Odyssey\FAB 2: 

Group 1 Friant 

Collection\SIDE 2 FABRIC: 

Journey Odyssey

$9,192.00 $501.88 $3,011.28

4 4 Circuit Receptacle, Circuit A FINISH: Silver $156.00 $12.78 $51.12

4 4 Circuit Receptacle, Circuit B FINISH: Silver $156.00 $12.78 $51.12

4 4 Circuit Receptacle, Circuit C FINISH: Silver $156.00 $12.78 $51.12

4 Pass-Through Festoon 23", 4 

Circuit

$508.00 $41.61 $166.44

2/13/2025Tillamook Co, NW Rides, NEMT Facility Furniture, WITH Delivery & Install, QUOTE 
60



6 23x46x46x23 Interra 120-90 Deg 

Corner WS TOP ONLY, for use with 

My-Hite base within Workstation 

Application

LAM: Arctic\PVC: 

Arctic\Does Not Apply

$7,782.00 $424.90 $2,549.40

6 3 Stage Height Adjustable Table 

Base, C-Leg, for Use on a 24Dx48W, 

120 Degree WS

Silver $15,000.00 $819.00 $4,914.00

2 23x40x70x23 Right Extended 

Curved Corner WS TOP ONLY, for 

use with My-Hite base within 

Workstation Application

LAM: Bark\PVC: Bark\Does 

Not Apply

$2,034.00 $333.17 $666.34

2 23"D x 30"W Interra WS TOP ONLY, 

Cross Grain, for use with My-Hite 

base within Workstation 

Application

LAM: Bark\PVC: Bark $844.00 $138.25 $276.50

2 3 Stage Height Adjustable Table 

Base, 24"D C-Leg, Corner Post

FIN: Silver $4,750.00 $778.05 $1,556.10

2 Flat bracket - Pair, for MY-HITE 

WORKSURFACE EXTENSION

$80.00 $13.10 $26.20

2 Anti-Sag Bar, 42" wide $248.00 $40.62 $81.24

8 Box/File Pedestal Mobile FIN: Silver\Bar Pull, Metal 

Finish

$7,520.00 $307.94 $2,463.52

2 Storage Cabinet w/Glass Doors Warm Ash 

Laminate/Brushed Nickel 

Accents/Glass Doors

$1,458.00 $336.18 $672.36

1 Two Drawer Lateral File Warm Ash 

Laminate/Brushed Nickel 

Handles

$1,029.00 $373.62 $373.62

Subtotal $25,135.10

Subtotal $42,041.51

Design Services / Project Management $0.00

Shipping $1,775.84

Installation $5,865.00

Sales Tax $0.00

Project Total $49,682.35
*Changes in quantity may result in price change

*All products have a Limited Lifetime warranty
Customer: Your local sales

associate is Clay Carpenter

DELIVERY LEVEL - INSIDE

DELIVERY, INSTALLATION

AND DEBRIS REMOVAL

YOUR ORDER IS MADE-TO-

ORDER AND NON-

RETURNABLE.

2/13/2025Tillamook Co, NW Rides, NEMT Facility Furniture, WITH Delivery & Install, QUOTE 
61



2D DRAWINGS

3D Selected Views

2/13/2025Tillamook Co, NW Rides, NEMT Facility Furniture, WITH Delivery & Install, QUOTE 
62



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE 

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

Authorizing the General Manager ) 
to Execute Amendment Number 4 ) 
to ODOT Section 5339 Grant ) 
Agreement Number 34225 )  RESOLUTION NO. 25-03 

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District (“District”) has received 
a grant from the Oregon Department of Transportation (“ODOT”) under Section 5339 of 
the Federal Transit Act of 1964, as amended, for vehicle purchases; and 

WHEREAS, on June 20, 2020, the District entered into ODOT Grant Agreement 
No. 34225, memorializing a grant in the total amount of $443,000; however, for 
Amendment Number 4, the grant amount is $170,000; and 

WHEREAS, on June 30, 2023, the District and ODOT mutually agreed to modify 
Exhibit A to extend the Grant Agreement period to June 30, 2025 to allow for the District 
to purchase one, expansion Class B transit vehicle with a useful life of ten years or 
350,000 miles; and 

WHEREAS, the District and ODOT mutually desire to modify Exhibit A to extend 
the Grant Agreement period to December 31, 2025 to allow for the District to purchase 
one, expansion Class B transit vehicle with a useful life of ten years or 350,000 miles; 
and 

WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors wishes to authorize the General 
Manager to execute Amendment Number 4 to extend the Grant Agreement period to 
December 31, 2025 to allow for the District to purchase one, expansion Class B transit 
vehicle with a useful life of ten years or 350,000 miles. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation 
District Board of Directors: 

that the General Manager is hereby authorized to accept and execute Amendment 
Number 4 to ODOT Grant Agreement No. 34225 in the amount of $170,000 on behalf of 
the Tillamook County Transportation District, to purchase one, expansion Class B transit 
vehicle by December 31, 2025.  

63



INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of February 2025. 

ATTEST: 

By: _____________________________ By: _____________________________ 
Mary Johnson, Board Chair Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

64



Misc. Contracts and Agreements
Agreement No. 34225

Version 4
Capital   5339

Page 1 of  6

AMENDMENT NUMBER 4
ODOT GRANT AGREEMENT NO. 34225

Tillamook County Transportation District

The State of Oregon, acting by and through its Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred 
to as State, and Tillamook County Transportation District, hereinafter referred to as Recipient, 
entered into an Agreement on June 20, 2020, Amendment 1 (one) on January 21, 2021, and 
Amendment 2 (two) on April 19, 2022, and Amendment 3 (three) on June 30, 2023. Said 
Agreement is to secure financial assistance to complete the activities described in Exhibit A.

It has now been determined by State and Recipient that the Agreement referenced above, although 
remaining in full force and effect, shall be amended to revise Exhibit A and extend the Agreement 
period.

Exhibit A shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the attached Revised Exhibit A. 
All references to "Exhibit A" shall hereinafter be referred to as "Revised Exhibit A."

1. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective on the later of July 1, 2020 or the
date when this Agreement is fully executed and approved as required by applicable law. Unless
otherwise terminated or extended, Grant Funds under this Agreement shall be available for Project
Costs incurred on or before June 30, 2022 (Expiration Date). No Grant Funds are available for
any expenditures after the Expiration Date. State's obligation to disburse Grant Funds under this
Agreement shall end as provided in Section 10 of this Agreement.

Shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

1. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective on the later of July 1, 2020 or the
date when this Agreement is fully executed and approved as required by applicable law. Unless
otherwise terminated or extended, Grant Funds under this Agreement shall be available for Project
Costs incurred on or before December 31, 2025 (Expiration Date). No Grant Funds are available
for any expenditures after the Expiration Date. State's obligation to disburse Grant Funds under this
Agreement shall end as provided in Section 10 of this Agreement.

65



Page 2 of  6

Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34225

This Amendment may be executed in several counterparts (facsimile or otherwise) all of which
when taken together shall constitute one agreement binding on all Parties, notwithstanding
that all Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. Each copy of this Amendment so
executed shall constitute an original.

THE PARTIES, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that their signing
representatives have read this Agreement, understand it, and agree to be bound by its terms
and conditions.

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW

66



Page 3 of  6

Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34225

Tillamook County Transportation District,
by and through its

By
(Legally designated representative)

Name
(printed)

Date

By

Name
(printed)

Date

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

(If required in local process)

By
Recipient's Legal Counsel

Date

Recipient Contact:
Brian  Vitulli
3600 Third Street, Suite A
Tillamook, OR 97141-0188
1 (503) 842-3115
bvitulli@tillamookbus.com

State Contact:
Arla Miller
555 13th Street NE
Salem, OR 97301-4179
1 (503) 949-5415
Arla.MILLER@odot.state.or.us

State of Oregon, by and through its
Department of Transportation

By
Suzanne Carlson
Public Transportation Division Administrator

Date

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED

By Arla Miller

Date 01/13/2025

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
(For funding over $250,000)

Amendment changes to this Agreement are within the
scope of the original or previously amended version;
therefore, legal sufficiency review is exempt under OAR
137-045-0050(2).

Signed Agreement Return Address: ODOTPTDReporting@odot.oregon.gov

67



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34225

Page 4 of  6

Revised Exhibit A

Project Description and Budget

Project Description/Statement of Work  

Project Title: 2020-22 R2A 5339 Tillamook County Transportation Dist. 34225
Champion Park Apartments Bus Stop Shelter Project.

Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
P-19-3290-01 Item #1: Passenger Shelters

$150,000.00 $120,000.00 $30,000.00 Local
Sub Total $150,000.00 $120,000.00 $30,000.00
Project Title: 2020-22 Tillamook County TD 34225
Vehicle Expansion. 

Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
P-19-3291-01 Item #1: Bus STD 35ft

$200,000.00 $170,000.00 $30,000.00 Local
P-19-3291-02 Item #1: Vans

$180,000.00 $153,000.00 $27,000.00 Local
Sub Total $380,000.00 $323,000.00 $57,000.00
Grand Total $530,000.00 $443,000.00 $87,000.00

1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

VEHICLE PURCHASE

Purchase 1 transit vehicle as follows: useful life - 10 years or 350,000 miles; approximate length
- 30 to 35 feet; estimated number of seats - 25 to 35; estimated number of ADA securement
stations - 2; fuel type - propane.

Purchase 2 transit vehicles as follows: useful life - 4 years or 100,000 miles; approximate length
- less than 20 feet; estimated number of seats - 9; estimated number of ADA securement
stations - 2; fuel type - gasoline.

Purchase includes all equipment and supplies necessary to put the vehicles into service.

SHELTERS, SIGNS, AND AMENITIES 

Provides funding to design, construct, purchase, and install approximately 1 bus passenger
shelter, 1 bus route sign including sign post, a bus pull out zone, and a shelter pad large enough
to accommodate bicycle parking. Also provides funding to install a sidewalk to the nearby
apartment complex to support the transportation needs of the general public and seniors and
individuals with disabilities. The purpose of this project is to provide shelter from weather,
passenger amenities such as benches for the comfort and convenience of riders, and signage for
transit route information.

Eligible expenses are: associated services, permits, permissions, and equipment needed to put
the passenger shelter, sign, and amenities into service; costs incurred from the procurement
process; delivery charges; and post-delivery inspections.  Architecture, design, engineering,
planning, and preparation services and permits, clearly needed to proceed with the project, are
eligible reimbursable expenses. 

A National Environmental Policy Act environmental assessment may or may not be required for
this project, depending on its complexity. A Documented Categorical Exclusion or Categorical
Exclusion worksheet must be submitted to State, and approved by the Federal Transit
Administration, prior to any ground disturbance. This award is contingent on approval of the
worksheet. Any project expenses incurred will not be reimbursed if the project's required
worksheet is not approved. 

68



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34225

Page 5 of  6

2. PROJECT DELIVERABLES, SCHEDULE and USE

VEHICLE PURCHASE

All purchases and installations must be completed prior to the expiration date of this
Agreement. 

RFP/IFB Issue Date: February 10, 2021
Contract Award Date: February 24, 2021
Initial Delivery Date: March 15, 2022
Final Delivery Date: December 17, 2025
Contract Completion Date: December 31, 2025

For vehicles procured using State Price Agreement contracts managed by the Oregon
Department of Administrative Services, all vehicle orders will be reviewed and approved by
State prior to submission to selected vendor. State is responsible for submitting vehicle orders
to selected vendor. If Recipient does not purchase from the State Price Agreement contracts
managed by the Oregon Department of Administrative Services, Requests for Proposals to
procure the vehicles must be reviewed by State prior to solicitation for bids. All vehicle orders
will be reviewed by State prior to submission to the selected vendor.

This Agreement provides funding to purchase a passenger transportation vehicles to be used to
provide public transportation service. Public transportation service is defined as service to the
general public or special populations such as seniors and individuals with disabilities. Recipient
may use the vehicles to coordinate public and human service transportation services with other
agencies. Recipient will not lease the vehicles to another agency without the permission of State.

State will retain title to the vehicles as primary security interest holder as long as the vehicles
remain in public transportation service. Recipient must request permission from State to release
title for disposal when planning to sell or transfer a vehicle which has exceeded the minimum
useful standard for age or mileage, and must notify State when actual disposal has been
completed. Recipient must request permission from State in advance to transfer or otherwise
dispose of a vehicle prior to its meeting federal useful life standards. Recipient must request
permission from State to release title for changes. 

Recipient will create and maintain a vehicle maintenance plan that utilizes the original equipment
manufacturer (OEM) requirements for each vehicle and meets FTA transit asset management
requirements in 49 CFR 625. Recipient will provide State a copy of the plan upon request. 

SHELTERS, SIGNS, AND AMENITIES

Recipient will submit a site plan and associated map(s) showing shelter, sign, and amenity
locations. Recipient will submit certification attesting to any applicable  permits, inspections, or
other requirements prior to final payment. State may perform an on-site inspection or request
photos of installations prior to final payment.

By accepting federal funds, Recipient certifies that the project will meet all Americans with
Disabilities Act requirements as set forth in 49 CFR parts 27, 37, and 38.
By accepting the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Recipient agrees to file with their local
jurisdiction, a restrictive covenant on any property deed and submit a copy to State. Proof of the
restrictive covenant filing must be received by State in order for final payment to be released. 
Recipient agrees to complete and submit to State a facilities maintenance plan compliant with
FTA Transit Asset Management rules 49 CFR part 625 prior to requesting reimbursement for
project activities under this Agreement.
All purchases, installations, and construction must be completed prior to the expiration date of
this Agreement. If an extension for time is required, a request must be received by State at least
45 days prior to the expiration date.

Expected project start date: July 1, 2020.
Expected project completion date: June 30, 2022.

69



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34225

Page 6 of  6

3. PROJECT ACCOUNTING and MATCHING FUNDING

Recipient will subtract income from fares, tickets, and passes whether pre-paid or post-paid,
from the gross operating expenses of the service. Under this Agreement, State will bear the sum
remaining after the amount of Recipient's required share of local matching funds is subtracted
from the total project expenses. Recipient may not count the same costs twice if they have
multiple agreements for which these costs may be eligible.

Recipient will provide matching funding from non-federal source(s). Sources of funding that may
be used as matching funding for this Agreement include State transit funds, local funds, service
contract revenue, advertisement income, other earned income, cash donations, and other
verifiable in-kind contributions that are integral to the project budget.  Recipient may not use
passenger fares as matching funding. Administration and facility contributions are documented
by percentage of contribution directly attributed to the project.

Purchases or charges that are otherwise paid for in other agreements or contracts are excluded.

VEHICLE PURCHASE

Eligible expenses that may be charged to this Agreement include grant administration, the
cost of the procurement process, delivery charges and post-delivery inspections. Aftermarket
equipment, graphics and other items directly associated with these vehicles and required to put
the vehicles into service are eligible. Purchase of an extended warranty is an eligible expense;
however, the eligible warranty shall not exceed the defined useful life of the vehicles. Licensing
and other post-delivery expenses are not eligible for reimbursement.   

SHELTERS, SIGNS, AND AMENITIES

Receipt of federal funds for construction projects requires that labor must be paid at the
prevailing wage as prescribed by the Davis-Bacon Act.

4. REPORTING and INVOICING REQUIREMENTS

VEHICLE PURCHASE

Recipient will provide reporting information as prescribed by State on the vehicles purchased
under this Agreement as long as the vehicles remain in public transportation service. 

Recipient will submit a request for reimbursement in a format provided by State. Reimbursement
requests must include the following: a cover letter and copies of all invoices associated with
expenses identified for reimbursement, and pre-award and post-delivery certification forms
documenting compliance to Altoona bus testing, Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards, Buy
America, and Disadvantaged Business Enterprise requirements.

SHELTERS, SIGNS, AND AMENITIES

Recipient agrees to assess and report the condition of facility and all capital assets within the
facility. Recipient will report as prescribed by State on shelters, signs, and amenities purchased
or constructed under this Agreement as long as they remain in use for public transportation
service. 

Copies of invoices for vendor charges must be submitted with reimbursement requests. In-
house charges may be documented in a spreadsheet or with copies of timesheets showing time
specifically associated with the project. In addition, Recipient must submit a cover letter or
summary of the total expenses for work performed. 

Expenses incurred will not be reimbursed if the project's scope is changed or altered without the
necessary approval and amendment by State. 

70



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE 

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 
 

 
Authorizing the General Manager  ) 
to Execute Amendment Number 3 ) 
to ODOT Section 5311 Grant  ) 
Agreement Number 34242  )     RESOLUTION NO. 25-04 
  
 

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District (“District”) has received 
a grant from the Oregon Department of Transportation (“ODOT”) under Section 5311 of 
the Federal Transit Act of 1964, as amended, for vehicle purchases; and 

 
WHEREAS, on July 23, 2020, the District entered into ODOT Grant Agreement 

No. 34242, memorializing a grant in the total amount of $430,704; however, for 
Amendment Number 3, the grant amount is $188,433; and 

 
WHEREAS, on December 20, 2023, the District and ODOT mutually agreed to 

modify Exhibit A to extend the Grant Agreement period to June 30, 2025 to allow for the 
District to purchase one, replacement Class B transit vehicle with a useful life of ten years 
or 350,000 miles; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District and ODOT mutually desire to modify Exhibit A to extend 

the Grant Agreement period to December 31, 2025 to allow for the District to purchase 
one, replacement Class B transit vehicle with a useful life of ten years or 350,000 miles; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors wishes to authorize the General 

Manager to execute Amendment Number 3 to extend the Grant Agreement period to 
December 31, 2025 to allow for the District to purchase one, replacement Class B transit 
vehicle with a useful life of ten years or 350,000 miles. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation 

District Board of Directors: 
 
that the General Manager is hereby authorized to accept and execute Amendment 

Number 3 to ODOT Grant Agreement No. 34242 in the amount of $188,433 on behalf of 
the Tillamook County Transportation District, to purchase one, replacement Class B 
transit vehicle by December 31, 2025.  
 
 
 
 
 

71



INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of February 2025. 

ATTEST: 

By: _____________________________ By: _____________________________ 
Mary Johnson, Board Chair Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

72



Misc. Contracts and Agreements
Agreement No. 34242

Version 3
Capital   5311

Page 1 of  5

AMENDMENT NUMBER 3
ODOT GRANT AGREEMENT NO. 34242

Tillamook County Transportation District

The State of Oregon, acting by and through its Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred 
to as State, and Tillamook County Transportation District, hereinafter referred to as Recipient, 
entered into an Agreement on July 27, 2020, Amendment 1 (one) on March 3, 2022, and 
Amendment 2 (two) on November 16, 2023. Said Agreement is to secure financial assistance to 
complete the activities described in Exhibit A. It has now been determined by State and Recipient 
that the Agreement referenced above, although remaining in full force and effect, shall be amended 
to revise Exhibit A and extend the Agreement period. 

Exhibit A shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the attached Revised Exhibit A. 
All references to "Exhibit A" shall hereinafter be referred to as "Revised Exhibit A."

Page 1, Agreement, Paragraph 1, which reads:

1. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective on the later of July 1, 2020 or the
date when this Agreement is fully executed and approved as required by applicable law. Unless
otherwise terminated or extended, Grant Funds under this Agreement shall be available for Project
Costs incurred on or before June 30, 2022 (Expiration Date). No Grant Funds are available for
any expenditures after the Expiration Date. State's obligation to disburse Grant Funds under this
Agreement shall end as provided in Section 10 of this Agreement.

Shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

1. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective on the later of July 1, 2020 or the
date when this Agreement is fully executed and approved as required by applicable law. Unless
otherwise terminated or extended, Grant Funds under this Agreement shall be available for Project
Costs incurred on or before December 31, 2025 (Expiration Date). No Grant Funds are available
for any expenditures after the Expiration Date. State's obligation to disburse Grant Funds under this
Agreement shall end as provided in Section 10 of this Agreement.

73



Page 2 of  5

Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34242

This Amendment may be executed in several counterparts (facsimile or otherwise) all of which
when taken together shall constitute one agreement binding on all Parties, notwithstanding
that all Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. Each copy of this Amendment so
executed shall constitute an original.

THE PARTIES, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that their signing
representatives have read this Agreement, understand it, and agree to be bound by its terms
and conditions.

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW

74



Page 3 of  5

Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34242

Tillamook County Transportation District,
by and through its

By
(Legally designated representative)

Name
(printed)

Date

By

Name
(printed)

Date

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

(If required in local process)

By
Recipient's Legal Counsel

Date

Recipient Contact:
Brian  Vitulli
3600 Third Street, Suite A
Tillamook, OR 97141-0188
1 (503) 842-3115
bvitulli@tillamookbus.com

State Contact:
Arla Miller
355 Capitol Street NE, MS 11
Salem, OR 97301
1 (503) 861-2798
Arla.MILLER@odot.state.or.us

State of Oregon, by and through its
Department of Transportation

By
Suzanne Carlson
Public Transportation Division Administrator

Date

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED

By Arla Miller

Date 01/13/2025

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
(For funding over $250,000)

Amendment changes to this Agreement are within the
scope of the original or previously amended version;
therefore, legal sufficiency review is exempt under OAR
137-045-0050(2).

Signed Agreement Return Address: ODOTPTDReporting@odot.oregon.gov

75



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34242

Page 4 of  5

Revised Exhibit A

Project Description and Budget

Project Description/Statement of Work  

Project Title: STP Tillamook County Transportation District 34242
Vehicle Replacement

Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
P-19-3312-01 Item #1: Bus STD 35ft

$210,000.00 $188,433.00 $21,567.00 Local
P-19-3312-02 Item #1: Bus < 30ft

$90,000.00 $80,757.00 $9,243.00 Local
P-19-3312-03 Item #1: Vans

$180,000.00 $161,514.00 $18,486.00 Local
Sub Total $480,000.00 $430,704.00 $49,296.00
Grand Total $480,000.00 $430,704.00 $49,296.00

1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Purchase 1 transit vehicle as follows: useful life - 10 years or 350,000 miles; approximate
length: 30 to 35 feet; estimated number of seats - 28; estimated number of ADA securement
stations - 2; fuel type - Propane.  

Purchase 1 transit vehicle as follows: useful life - 5 years or 150,000 miles; approximate length -
20 to 25 feet; estimated number of seats - 14; estimated number of ADA securement stations -
3; fuel type - gasoline.  

Purchase 2 transit vehicles as follows: useful life - 4 years or 100,000 miles; approximate length
- less than 20 feet; estimated number of seats - 9; estimated number of ADA securement
stations - 2; fuel type - gasoline.

Purchase includes all equipment and supplies necessary to put the vehicles into service. 

The following vehicles have been approved for replacement in this Agreement:

1. OPTIS No. V001395; 2013 Champion Defender; 1FVACWDUXDHFJ3377.
2. OPTIS No. V001478; 2014 Chevrolet Goshen;  1GB3G3BG1E1159667 .
3. OPTIS No. V001476; 2014 Dodge Caravan; 2C7WDGBG5ER319735.
4. OPTIS No. V001477; 2014 Dodge Caravan; 2C7WDGBG2ER319739.

2. PROJECT DELIVERABLES, SCHEDULE and USE

All purchases and installations must be completed prior to the expiration date of this
Agreement. 

RFP/IFB Issue Date: February 10, 2021
Contract Award Date: February 24, 2021
Initial Delivery Date: March 15, 2022
Final Delivery Date: December 17, 2025
Contract Completion Date: December 31, 2025

For vehicles procured using State Price Agreement contracts managed by the Oregon
Department of Administrative Services, all vehicle orders will be reviewed and approved by
State prior to submission to selected vendor. State is responsible for submitting vehicle orders
to selected vendor. If Recipient does not purchase from the State Price Agreement contracts
managed by the Oregon Department of Administrative Services, Requests for Proposals to
procure the vehicles must be reviewed by State prior to solicitation for bids. All vehicle orders

76



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34242

Page 5 of  5

will be reviewed by State prior to submission to the selected vendor.

This Agreement provides funding to purchase passenger transportation vehicles to be used to
provide public transportation service. Public transportation service is defined as service to the
general public or special populations such as seniors and individuals with disabilities. Recipient
may use the vehicles to coordinate public and human service transportation services with other
agencies. Recipient will not lease the vehicles to another agency without the permission of State.

State will retain title to the vehicles as primary security interest holder as long as the vehicles
remain in public transportation service. Recipient must request permission from State to release
title for disposal when planning to sell or transfer a vehicle which has exceeded the minimum
useful standard for age or mileage, and must notify State when actual disposal has been
completed. Recipient must request permission from State in advance to transfer or otherwise
dispose of a vehicle prior to its meeting federal useful life standards. Recipient must request
permission from State to release title for changes. 

Recipient will create and maintain a vehicle maintenance plan that utilizes the original equipment
manufacturer (OEM) maintenance requirements for each vehicle and which meets FTA transit
asset management requirements in 49 CFR 625. Recipient will provide State a copy of the
maintenance plan upon request.   

3. PROJECT ACCOUNTING and MATCHING FUNDING

Eligible expenses that may be charged to this Agreement include grant administration, the
cost of the procurement process, delivery charges and post-delivery inspections. Aftermarket
equipment, graphics and other items directly associated with these vehicles and required to put
the vehicles into service are eligible. Purchase of an extended warranty is an eligible expense;
however, the eligible warranty shall not exceed the defined useful life of the vehicles. Licensing
and other post-delivery expenses are not eligible for reimbursement. 

Recipient will provide matching funding from non-federal source(s). Sources of funding that
may be used as matching funding for this Agreement include State grant funds, local funds,
service contract revenue, advertisement income, other earned income, cash donations, and
other verifiable in-kind contributions that are integral to the project budget.  Recipient may not
use passenger fares as matching funding.  

Recipient will subtract income from fares, tickets, and passes whether pre-paid or post-paid,
from the gross operating expenses of the service. Under this Agreement, State will bear the sum
remaining after the amount of Recipient's required share of local matching funds is subtracted
from the total project expenses. Recipient may not count the same costs twice if they have
multiple agreements for which these costs may be eligible.  

4. REPORTING and INVOICING REQUIREMENTS

Recipient will provide reporting information as prescribed by State on the vehicles purchased
under this Agreement as long as the vehicles remain in public transportation service. Recipient
will submit a request for reimbursement in a format provided by State. Reimbursement requests
must include the following: a cover letter, copies of all invoices associated with expenses
identified for reimbursement, and pre-award and post-delivery certification forms documenting
compliance to Altoona bus testing, Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards, Buy America, and
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise requirements. 

77



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE 

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

Authorizing the General Manager ) 
to Execute Amendment Number 1 ) 
to ODOT Section 5311 Grant ) 
Agreement Number 35606 )  RESOLUTION NO. 25-05 

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District (“District”) has received 
a grant from the Oregon Department of Transportation (“ODOT”) under Section 5311 of 
the Federal Transit Act of 1964, as amended, which grant is memorialized in ODOT Grant 
Agreement No. 35606; and 

WHEREAS, on September 21, 2023, the District entered into ODOT Grant 
Agreement No. 35606, memorializing a grant in the total amount of $360,000; and 

WHEREAS, ODOT allocated funding to the District to design, purchase, construct, 
and install, approximately two bus passenger shelters, two bus route signs including 
signposts, and two amenities to support the transportation needs of the general public 
and seniors and individuals with disabilities; and 

WHEREAS, the District and ODOT mutually desire to modify Exhibit A to extend 
the Grant Agreement period to June 30, 2027 to allow for the District to design, purchase, 
construct, and install, approximately two bus passenger shelters, two bus route signs 
including signposts, and two amenities to support the transportation needs of the general 
public and seniors and individuals with disabilities; and 

WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors wishes to authorize the General 
Manager to execute Amendment Number 1 to ODOT Grant Agreement No. 35606 in the 
amount of $360,000 on behalf of the District to design and install approximately two bus 
stop facilities. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation 
District Board of Directors: 

that the General Manager is hereby authorized to accept and execute Amendment 
Number 1 to ODOT Grant Agreement No. 35606 in the amount of $360,000 on behalf of 
the Tillamook County Transportation District, to design and install approximately two bus 
stop facilities by June 30, 2027.  

78



INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of February 2025. 

ATTEST: 

By: _____________________________ By: _____________________________ 
Mary Johnson, Board Chair Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

79



Misc. Contracts and Agreements
Agreement No. 35606

Version 1
Capital   5311

Page 1 of  8

AMENDMENT NUMBER 1
ODOT GRANT AGREEMENT NO. 35606

Tillamook County Transportation District

The State of Oregon, acting by and through its Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred 
to as State, and Tillamook County Transportation District, hereinafter referred to as Recipient, 
entered into an Agreement on September 21, 2023. Said Agreement is to secure financial 
assistance to complete the activities described in Exhibit A.

It has now been determined by State and Recipient that the Agreement referenced above, although 
remaining in full force and effect, shall be amended to extend the Agreement period. 

Page 1, Agreement, Paragraph 1, which reads:

1. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective on the later of July 1, 2023  or the
date when this Agreement is fully executed and approved as required by applicable law. Unless
otherwise terminated or extended, Grant Funds under this Agreement shall be available for Project
Costs incurred on or before June 30, 2025 (the "Expiration Date"). No Grant Funds are available
for any expenditures after the Expiration Date. State's obligation to disburse Grant Funds under this
Agreement shall end as provided in Section 10 of this Agreement.

Shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

1. Effective Date.  This Agreement shall become effective on the later of  September 21, 2023 or
the date when this Agreement is fully executed and approved as required by applicable law. Unless
otherwise terminated or extended, Grant Funds under this Agreement shall be available for Project
Costs incurred on or before June 30, 2027 (the "Expiration Date"). No Grant Funds are available
for any expenditures after the Expiration Date. State's obligation to disburse Grant Funds under this
Agreement shall end as provided in Section 10 of this Agreement.

80



Page 2 of  8

Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35606

This Amendment may be executed in several counterparts (facsimile or otherwise) all of which
when taken together shall constitute one agreement binding on all Parties, notwithstanding
that all Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. Each copy of this Amendment so
executed shall constitute an original.

THE PARTIES, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that their signing
representatives have read this Agreement, understand it, and agree to be bound by its terms
and conditions.

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW

81



Page 3 of  8

Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35606

Tillamook County Transportation District,
by and through its

By
(Legally designated representative)

Name
(printed)

Date

By

Name
(printed)

Date

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

(If required in local process)

By
Recipient's Legal Counsel

Date

Recipient Contact:
Brian Vitulli
3600 Third Street, Suite A
Tillamook, OR 97141-0188
1 (503) 842-3115
bvitulli@tillamookbus.com

State Contact:
Arla Miller
555 13th Street NE
Salem, OR 97301-4179
1 (503) 949-5415
Arla.MILLER@odot.state.or.us

State of Oregon, by and through its
Department of Transportation

By
Suzanne Carlson
Public Transportation Division Administrator

Date

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED

By Arla Miller

Date 02/11/2025

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
(For funding over $250,000)

By
Assistant Attorney General

Name Nina R. Englander by email
(printed)

Date 11/12/2024

Signed Agreement Return Address: ODOTPTDReporting@odot.oregon.gov

82



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35606

Page 4 of  8

Revised Exhibit A

Project Description and Budget

Project Description/Statement of Work  

Project Title: 5311(f) Tillamook County Transporation District 35606
NW Connector Passenger Shelters

Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
P-23-3857-01 Item #1: Passenger Shelters

$450,000.00 $360,000.00 $90,000.00 State
Sub Total $450,000.00 $360,000.00 $90,000.00
Grand Total $450,000.00 $360,000.00 $90,000.00

1. BACKGROUND

In the 2017 legislative session, the Oregon Legislature passed House Bill 2017, the Statewide
Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF). The bill designated nine percent of the total funds
appropriated to be awarded to eligible Public Transportation Service Providers (PTSPs) based
on a competitive grant process. This nine percent is divided into a five-percent share for STIF
Discretionary projects and a four-percent share for STIF Intercommunity Discretionary projects. 

The STIF Discretionary fund is a flexible fund source that aims to expand or improve public
transportation services by supporting projects that create new service routes, adopt enhanced
forms of technology and data collection, maintain transit fleets in a state of good repair, and
advance the equity and sustainability of transportation in the state. 

The STIF Intercommunity Discretionary fund is housed with FTA Section 5311(f) funds under the
"Statewide Transit Network Program." The purpose of the Statewide Transit Network Program
is to support projects that enhance Oregon's statewide fixed route transit network by investing
in key transit hubs, closing gaps between two or more communities, improving access to and
from transit for pedestrians and bicyclists, improving collaboration and coordination between
agencies that results in functional benefits, or other activities that improve the function of the
overall transit network and serve the interests of more than one transit agency.

This Agreement describes the duties and responsibilities of State and Recipient in the
management and proper use of STIF funds or 5311(f) funds and the associated reporting
requirements.

2. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

This Agreement provides continued funding from previous 5311(f) award Agreement 35084 to
design, purchase, construct and install, approximately two bus passenger shelters, two bus route
signs including signposts, and two amenities to support the transportation needs of the general
public and seniors and individuals with disabilities. The stops in this project are located in Lincoln
County at Rays Market in Waldport Lat/Long 44.42964,-124.06047 and Tillamook County in
Pacific City Alder Street and Cape Kiwanda Drive Lat/Long 45.21498,-123.96963. 

The purpose of the project is to provide shelter from weather, passenger amenities such as
benches for the comfort and convenience of riders, and signage for transit route information.

Eligible expenses are: associated services, permits, permissions, and equipment needed to put
the passenger shelters, signs, and amenities into service; costs incurred from the procurement
process; delivery charges; and post-delivery inspections.  Architecture, Design, Engineering,
Planning, and Preparation services and permits, clearly needed to proceed with the project, are
eligible reimbursable expenses. 

83



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35606

Page 5 of  8

A Documented Categorical Exclusion worksheet or Categorical Exclusion worksheet may
be submitted to State to establish a historical benchmark. State-funded shelters, signs, or
amenities projects must comply with state and local procurement and construction rules. 
This project supports intercity transit service, which is characterized by infrequent stops, not
being designed primarily for commuters, and the use of vehicles with the capacity to carry
passenger luggage. The supported service makes meaningful connections to the larger transit
network where possible. The supported service route covers a one-way distance of at least 20
miles or closes a vital gap in the statewide transit network.

3. PROJECT DELIVERABLES, TASKS and SCHEDULE

Recipient will submit final design, site plans and associated maps showing shelter, sign, and
amenity locations. Recipient will submit certification attesting to any applicable permits,
inspections, or other requirements prior to final payment. State may perform an on-site
inspection or request photos of installations prior to final payment.

a. Recipient shall procure and hire a consultant to finalize design work of stop projects.

b. Recipient shall procure, and hire a general contractor/project manager who will be able to
perform or supervise the following:
- Project Management
- Final design consultation with consultant, and ODOT Development and Review.
- Work with local cities, or ODOT for all construction permits, as well right of way permits.
- Construction and construction oversight, to stay on time and budget.

c. Recipient shall contact local jurisdictions to confirm stop locations, design of stops, and that
stops are agreeable between transit agencies, and local jurisdictions. Recipient shall send local
jurisdictions agreeability to State for files. State shall transmit agreeability of local jurisdictions
to contractor completing Documented Categorical Exclusion for Federal Transit Administration for
approval.

d. Recipient shall require Project Manager/Contractor to work with ODOT Senior Transportation
Planner, from Region 2, Astoria for assistance in Right of Way permitting where applicable.

e. Recipient shall require Project Manager/Contractor to submit reports to Recipient regarding
progress of project. Recipient shall work with Project Manager/Contractor to determine if weekly,
bi-weekly, or monthly reports are acceptable.

f. Recipient shall attach reports submitted by Project Manager/Contractor quarterly to
reimbursement for this agreement.

By accepting funds, Recipient certifies that the project will meet all Americans with Disabilities
Act requirements as set forth in 49 CFR parts 27, 37, and 38.
Recipient will submit final photographs of completed project, at time of final submission of
reimbursement.
All purchases, installations, and construction must be completed prior to the expiration date of
this Agreement. If an extension for time is required, a request must be received by State at least
45 days prior to the expiration date.

Expected project start date: July 1, 2023.
Expected project completion date: June 30, 2027.
Federal applications require the following milestones to be reported and updated every quarter.

Buildings/Shelters/Stops Locations 

Warrenton 46.147463-123.91225
Pacific City 45.214911-123969506
Waldport 44.429674-124060063

84



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35606

Page 6 of  8

Construction of shelters, stops, building need milestones 

RFP/IFB Issue Date: February 14, 2025
Contract Award Date: February 28, 2025
Initial Delivery Date: June 30, 2026
Final Delivery Date: May 31, 2027
Contract Completion Date: June 30, 2027

Recipient, in the performance of this Project, shall document steps taken to improve accessibility
of public transportation for vulnerable populations and/or historically marginalized communities.
Vulnerable populations include low-income individuals or households, veterans, Tribal
communities or groups, individuals of age 65 and older, individuals with disabilities, and
individuals with limited English proficiency. Information on this topic shall be provided to State
through reporting.  

4. PROJECT ACCOUNTING and MATCHING FUNDING

Recipient retains authority over costs and allocations of STIF funds within the guidelines
established by Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 184.751 through 184.758 and Oregon
Administrative Rules (OAR) Chapter 732. 

Eligible matching fund sources for this Agreement include Special Transportation Formula
Funds, local funds, service contract revenue, advertisement income, other earned income, cash
donations, and other verifiable in-kind contributions that are integral to the project budget.
Recipient may not use passenger fares as match.  Administration and facility contributions are
documented by percentage of contribution directly attributed to the project.

Recipient will subtract income from fares, tickets, and passes whether pre-paid or post-paid,
from the gross operating expenses of the service. The required local match share will be
subtracted from the project expenses to determine the Agreement share of the project expense. 

Receipt of federal funds for construction projects requires that labor must be paid at the
prevailing wage as prescribed by the Davis-Bacon Act.

Purchases or charges that are otherwise paid for in other agreements or contracts are excluded. 

SPENDING PLAN
State's obligation to disburse Grant funds to Recipient under this agreement is contingent upon
the availability of appropriated funds from which payment can be made. Therefore, Grant Funds
shall be disbursed according to the following disbursement schedule. This schedule is based on
the standard Agreement term of two fiscal years, each running from July 1 through June 30.

Disbursement Schedule

First year maximum disbursement: no more than 50 percent of the total grant amount
regardless of the amount of any reimbursement request. A partial payment may be made by
State if Recipient requests more than this amount in the first fiscal year period.

Second year maximum disbursement: no more than 50 percent of the total grant amount plus
any remaining portion from the first fiscal year.

Operations projects have a 50 percent match requirement. All other project types have a 20
percent match requirement.

5. REPORTING AND INVOICING REQUIREMENTS

Recipient agrees to assess and report the condition of facility and all capital assets within the
facility. Recipient will report as prescribed by State on shelters, signs, and amenities purchased
or constructed under this Agreement as long as they remain in use for public transportation
service. 

85



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35606

Page 7 of  8

Copies of invoices for vendor charges must be submitted with reimbursement requests. In-
house charges may be documented in a spreadsheet or with copies of timesheets showing time
specifically associated with the project. In addition, Recipient must submit a cover letter or
summary of the total expenses for work performed. 

Expenses incurred will not be reimbursed if the project's scope is changed or altered without the
necessary approval and amendment by State.
Recipient shall confirm the eligibility of any Sub-Recipient prior to distributing STIF moneys and
entering into an agreement with the Sub-Recipient. Recipient shall ensure that Sub-Recipients
maintain eligibility throughout the project period. Recipient shall provide State with copies of
agreement(s) made with Sub-Recipients within 30 days of execution of those agreements.

Per OAR 732-044-0040(1)(a), Recipient shall report on Project progress, outcomes achieved,
and expenditures of discretionary STIF funds by itself and its Sub-Recipients. Failure to use
STIF funds towards achievement of identified project deliverables may result in the cessation of
funding to Recipient for the remainder of the Agreement period. 

Project Progress Reporting

Recipient shall report Project progress quarterly through the Oregon Public Transit Information
System (OPTIS) Agency Periodic Report (APR) and shall include a brief status update for each
deliverable. Project reporting should align with project deliverables identified in this Agreement.
State will use reporting information to assess Recipient's progress by comparing task-based
expenditures to progress on deliverables.  

Outcomes Achieved Reporting

Recipient shall report outcomes achieved through project performance. Continued funding under
this Agreement is contingent upon reporting of outcomes achieved.

On a quarterly basis, in addition to continuing required elements in the APR, Recipient shall
complete a short narrative describing outcomes achieved in performance of the Project. For
the final quarter of the biennium, Recipient shall report on quarterly outcomes achieved as well
as summarize outcomes achieved over the duration of the Agreement.  Recipient shall provide
additional information on outcomes achieved when and where directed to do so by State in
reporting guidance. 

Recipient shall update construction milestones on a quarterly basis.

Outcomes achieved are defined in State's program guidance and that guidance provides State's
expectations surrounding all reporting requirements. For detailed instructions on quarterly,
annual, and biennial reporting, refer to State's STIF Discretionary/STN Reporting Guidance
document.  

Expenditures

Expenditures of STIF Discretionary funds will be tracked in OPTIS. Recipient must submit
reimbursement requests in OPTIS to receive reimbursement for Project expenditures.  

FOR CAPITAL ASSET AGREEMENTS:

Recipient shall ensure Satisfactory Continuing Control of capital assets, including real property,
purchased in whole or part under this Agreement while the capital assets are being used for
public transportation purposes. Satisfactory Continuing Control means the legal assurance that a
capital asset will remain available to be used for its originally-authorized purpose throughout its
useful life or until disposition.

An inventory of capital assets purchased in whole or in part with STIF funds will be created by
State in the OPTIS asset register. The inventory will include a description of the capital asset,

86



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 35606

Page 8 of  8

the date of purchase, the date put into public transportation service, the purchase price, the
amount of STIF funds contributed to the purchase, the source of other funds, the authorized use
per this agreement, the Recipient or Sub-Recipient using the capital asset (Owner/Operator),
and the condition of the asset.  Recipient shall report quarterly on all capital assets through the
OPTIS APR, providing information relevant to purchased capital assets, including but not limited
to, asset condition, and vehicle mileage.   

Recipient shall request authorization from State for the sale, transfer, or other disposition of any
Capital Asset purchased under this Agreement and shall report the amount of proceeds, if any,
from the sale to State. Capital asset useful life standards shall be the same as those outlined by
the Federal Transit Administration.

Recipient will provide reporting information as prescribed by State on the capital asset purchases
under this Agreement as long as the capital asset remain in public transportation service. 

Reimbursement requests for capital assets must include the following: a cover letter and copies
of all invoices associated with expenses identified for reimbursement. Where a vehicle asset
will be partially funded with federal funds, Recipient shall submit pre-award and post-delivery
certification forms documenting compliance to Altoona bus testing, Federal Motor Vehicle Safety
Standards, Buy America, and Disadvantaged Business enterprise requirements. 

Reporting on Mitigation of Tax Impacts to Low-income Populations

Per OAR 732-040-0025(1), Qualified Entities receiving STIF funds shall submit a report on any
actions taken by any PTSP located within the area of the Qualified Entity to mitigate the impact
of the STIF tax on passengers who reside in low-income communities. This report must be
submitted no later than 60 days after the end of each fiscal year in which the Qualified Entity
receives STIF funds.  

If Recipient is a Qualified Entity, Recipient shall submit this report as instructed separately from
this Agreement and shall attach all responses submitted to Recipient by PTSPs receiving STIF
discretionary funds that detail actions taken by those PTSPs.

87



88



89


	1 Board Packet Cover 2.19.2025.pdf
	2 Agenda 2.19.2025.pdf
	7 Dec 2024 BOD Financials.pdf
	8.1 Ops Presentation DEC 2024.pdf
	TCTD Operations Statistics & Performance�December 2024
	YTD COMPS BY SERVICE TYPE
	IN-COUNTY RIDERSHIP BY ROUTE�YTD COMPS
	DAR RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE�YTD COMPS
	PASSENGER CATEGORIES�YTD COMPS
	TOTAL SERVICES RIDERSHIP�December 2024  &  December 2023

	8.3 Ops Performance Measures.pdf
	8.2 12-24 RIDERSHIP REPORT.pdf
	9 2025.02.14 NWOTA Meeting Agenda.pdf
	9.1 2025.01.10 NWOTA Minutes.pdf
	11 GM Report_February 2025.pdf
	13 1.15.2025 Minutes_FINAL.pdf
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Roll Call:
	Present
	TCTD Board of Directors
	Absent
	TCTD Board of Directors
	None
	TCTD Staff
	Brian Vitulli, General Manager
	Cathy Bond, Finance Supervisor
	Michael Reed, Operations Superintendent
	Keri Brown, Admin Assistant/Board Clerk
	Guest
	Arla Miller, ODOT
	David McCall, Citizen
	John Cline, Citizen
	4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda: Added to Item 9: November 2024 Monthly Service Performance Report; added Item 17: Resolution 25-02 Adopting the FY 2025-2027 STIF Formula Fund Plan and Authorizing the General Manager to Submit the FY 2025-2027 ...
	5. Public & Guest Comments: David McCall let everyone know that GM Vitulli went above and beyond when his (David) City vehicle broke down. GM Vitulli stayed until the tow truck driver came, which was about an hour and a half later and gave him a ride ...
	6. Executive Session: None.
	7. Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2: Re-establishing and Amending Ordinance No. 2; Establishing TCTD Fare Zones, Categories, and Rates; and Establishing an Effective Date.
	STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT
	8. Financial and Grant Report: FS Bond reviewed the November 2024 financials included in the Board packet pages 6-31.
	Director Hanenkrat asked about item 18924 on page 7 regarding Quick Cab LLC charge, questioned why it wasn’t charged to NW Rides Brokerage. FS Bond explained that it was a fee for service for a dialysis patient.
	Director Adler asked why NW Rides doesn’t cover this. FS Bond said that TCTD will pay, but ODOT and Care Oregon will help offset the cost once the Dialysis Clinic is open. Until then, it will continue to be covered under TCTD’s human services grant.
	Director Fiorelli stated that he appreciates what the District does for dialysis patients and asked who Ryan’s Transportation Service is. FS Bond explained that he has many employees that work for him and many vehicles in the network.
	Director Adler stated that the NW Rides Ecolane training should have been for NW Rides only. FS Bond stated that she does the financial reporting for deviated fixed-route, DAR, and NW Rides including volunteer services, and is a super-user of this sof...
	b. The rides that were provided were 51,002 in 2024 over 47,033 in 2023. Mileage reimbursement rides were 17,761 in 2024 over 17,373 in 2023. Volunteer rides were 7,774 in 2024 over 6,586 in 2023.
	c. Providers had an increase of approximately 4000 rides in 2024. Mileage reimbursement increased by a little under 400 rides. Volunteers performed 1,208 more rides in 2024, than 2023.
	d. Miles driven by providers were 1,164,232 in 2024 over 1,119237 in 2023. Mileage reimbursement miles were 766,388 in 2024 over 740,170 in 2023. Volunteer miles in 2024 were 341,697 over 284,528 in 2023.
	e. Providers had an increase of approximately 45,000 miles in 2024. Mileage reimbursement increased by a little over 26,000 miles. Volunteers drove over 57,000 miles further in 2024.
	f. Tillamook Family Counseling Center has moved out of their office, and we are working with vendors for the build-out of that space for NW Rides.
	12. General Manager Report: GM Vitulli provided the following updates included in Board packet pages 44-45 (see GM Report in packet for details):
	a. Administration/Coordination
	b. Planning Development
	c. Grant Funding
	d. Facility/Property Development
	e. Operations and Vehicle Maintenance
	13. Miscellaneous: None.
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	ACTION ITEMS
	DISCUSSION ITEMS
	18. Board Vacancy – Position 1:
	The Board discussed whether to proceed with filling the current Board vacancy by seeking applications or waiting until the May 2025 election. Director Hanenkrat stated to wait until the May election. Director Fiorelli and Adler agreed. Director Adler ...
	Director Bean stated that if the Board seeks to fill the vacancy, it could be a good opportunity for the new member to test their role before deciding whether to place their name on the May ballot. With May elections they wouldn’t start until July.
	Director Fiorelli stated that with Chair Johnson back that he doesn’t anticipate there will be issues seeking a quorum, so waiting until the election should not be an issue.
	Chair Johnson stated that there would be no harm in posting notice that the District is seeking candidates for the vacant Board position. Director Adler agreed. Director Fiorelli stated that he would not oppose it. The Board instructed GM Vitulli to ...
	19. Staff Comments:
	General Manager Vitulli: Stated that the February meeting will have two ODOT grant agreements for consideration and thanked everyone for their support.
	Operations Superintendent Reed: None
	Finance Supervisor Bond: Stated that the holiday employee party was a great success. Thanked everyone who came to help. Drivers were surprised to see OS Reed, GM Vitulli and FS Bond come in so early to serve them breakfast. Operations Coordinator Cris...
	Brokerage Manager Deputy: Stated Happy 2025 and looking forward to a positive and productive New Year.
	Admin Assistant Brown: None
	20. Board of Directors Comments:
	Chair Johnson: None
	Vice Chair Adler: Stated Happy New Year.
	Dir. Hanenkrat: None
	Dir. Johnston: Thanked FS Bond for the party, it was a great time and good food. Happy New Year.
	Dir. Bean: None.
	Dir. Fiorelli: Announced that his work is taking him out of state for periods of time but will maintain his residency here in Tillamook County. Wants to retain his seat on the Board of Directors.
	21. Adjournment: Board Chair Johnson adjourned the meeting at 7:49 pm.
	These minutes were approved this 19th day of February 2025.
	ATTEST:

	15 ORDINANCE  TCTD Fare Policy 12.2024 CLEAN DRAFT.pdf
	16 FY 2025-26 Budget Calendar.pdf
	18 32 Reasonable Modification 02.19.25.pdf
	19 NBF Furniture Quote.pdf
	20 25-03 ODOT Section 5339 Agreement No 34225 Amendment 4.pdf
	20.1 ODOT Grant Agreement No. 34225.pdf
	21 25-04 ODOT Section 5311 Agreement No 34242 Amendment 3.pdf
	21.1 ODOT Grant Agreement No. 34242.pdf
	22 25-05 ODOT Section 5311 Agreement No 35606 Amendment 1.pdf
	22.1 ODOT Grant Agreement No. 35606.pdf
	23 BOD Application_David McCall_Redacted.pdf
	23.1 BOD Application_James Heffernan_Redacted.pdf



